
 

   Nevada Supreme Court Access to Justice Commission  
Friday, June 29, 2012  

9 am – 11:30 a.m. in the Executive Room, Hotel Del Coronado 

Joining the State Bar of Nevada Annual Convention 
1500 Orange Ave Coronado, CA 92118              

                                                                   

 
To attend by conference call:   1-877-594-8353  Passcode 35688281 
 
To contact the hotel: (619) 435-6611 

 
AGENDA 

 

1. EAPB Emeritus Application: Washoe Public Defender 
 
2. Statewide Legal Services Report 

a. Executive Director Report 
b. Individual Program Reports 

 
3. Potential items for legislative session 
 
4. Nevada Law Foundation & IOLTA 

a. Nevada Law Foundation Report 
b. IOLTA Compliance update 

 
5. SCR 217 Interest Rate  

a. Bi-annual rate review- policy 
b. Review of current fixed rate 

 
6. Marketing and Communications report 

a. PR Plan  
b. Public Speakers Bureau 

 
7. Equal Justice Conference 
 
8. Statewide Awards  
 
9. Statewide Uniform Statistics Report  

 
10. Self-Help Center Report 

 
11. Veterans Initiative  
 
12. Commission Calendar and upcoming events 

 
a. Set small and mid-firm meeting date 
b. Set specialty bar meeting date 
c. Set final 2012 Commission meetings  

 
13. Other Business and informational items 

a. Draft Minutes 3.9.2012 
b. NY Mandates Pro Bono for new admittees 
c. ABA 2011 Services Delivery Year-in-Review Report 

 











Page 1 of 3 
NLF Memorandum to Access to Justice Commission and State Bar of Nevada 
June 27, 2012 

Memorandum  

To:  Access to Justice Commission and State Bar of Nevada 
From:  Nevada Law Foundation 
Date:  June 27, 2012 
 
Re:  UPDATE on Issues Related to Supreme Court Rule 217 
 

I. May IOLTA at-a-glance 
 

 2012 2011 
Total number of IOLTAs 2,796 2,507 
Average amount on deposit1 $283,308,352 $226,969,228 
Total reported interest accrued2 $176,315 $147,272 
Year-to-date remittance  $839,603 $716,604 

 

 
 

 
 

                                                 
1 Monthly revenue should not be used to project income, as IOLTA revenue has the ability to significantly fluctuate from month-to-month. 
2 Formula:  average amount on deposit * .0075 * number  of days in month  / 365 = remittance 

$220,000,000
$230,000,000
$240,000,000
$250,000,000
$260,000,000
$270,000,000
$280,000,000
$290,000,000

Average Amount On Deposit 

$140,000

$150,000

$160,000

$170,000

$180,000

$190,000

IOLTA Revenue 



Page 2 of 3 
NLF Memorandum to Access to Justice Commission and State Bar of Nevada 
June 27, 2012 

 
 

II. Financial institutions meeting requirements set forth in Rule 217 
 

A. Financial Institutions with greater than 25 IOLTAs 
 

Financial Institution Accounts 
Interest 

rate 
Average amount 

on deposit 
IOLTA 

remittance 
Bank of America 549 0.750 $34,173,846.75 $21,755.28 
Bank of George  27 0.750 $4,850,649.48 $3,090.61 
Bank of Nevada  313 0.750 $56,416,669.97 $35,913.86 
Bank of the West  45 1.110 $4,841,363.98 $4,270.58 
Citibank  51 0.750 $2,932,988.58 $1,653.01 
City National Bank  90 0.750 $23,515,947.00 $14,979.37 
First Independent Bank of Nevada  32 0.750 $9,195,432.92 $5,856.74 
Heritage Bank 31 0.750 $4,137,778.65 $2,620.36 
Mutual of Omaha Bank3  26 0.350 $2,859,955.00 $1,777.87 
Nevada State Bank 434 0.750 $39,617,327.60 $24,387.03 
U.S. Bank  253 0.750 $16,724,857.34 $9,297.11 
Wells Fargo  810 0.750 $62,887,631.75 $35,298.93 
TOTAL 2661   $262,154,449.02 $160,900.75 

 
  

                                                 
3 NLF has called Mutual of Omaha to inquire why the interest rate was dropped. 

2,500
2,550
2,600
2,650
2,700
2,750
2,800
2,850

IOLTA Accounts 



Page 3 of 3 
NLF Memorandum to Access to Justice Commission and State Bar of Nevada 
June 27, 2012 

B. Financial institutions with fewer than 25 IOLTAs4 
 

Financial Institution 
 

Accounts 
 

Interest 
rate 

Average amount  
on deposit 

IOLTA 
remittance 

Financial Horizons Credit Union5  1 0.200     
First Savings Bank 2 0.750     
First Security Bank of Nevada  10 0.750     
M & I Bank  3 0.750     
Meadows Bank  13 0.750     
Nevada Bank & Trust  3 1.250     
Northern Trust Bank, FSB  3 0.750     
Plaza Bank 4 0.750     
Royal Business Bank 2 0.750   
Service First Bank of Nevada  19 0.750     
Silver State Schools Credit Union  5 1.250     
Town and Country Bank 1 0.750   
Umpqua Bank  7 0.750   
Valley Bank of Nevada 7 0.750     
TOTAL 80   $20,710,789.84 $15,358.02 

 
III. Financial institutions not meeting requirements set forth in Rule 217 

 
A. JP Morgan Chase Bank 

• Number of accounts: 55 
• Interest rate:  .08 
• Average amount on deposit: $443,113 
• IOLTA remittance: $56.31 

 
 

                                                 
4 NLF does not report IOLTA remittance or average amount on deposit for financial institutions with fewer than twenty-five IOLTAs to maintain 
attorney-client and financial institution-attorney confidentiality. 
5 Member or member’s law firm does not maintain an office within twenty miles of a financial institution meeting Rule 217 requirements. 



Page 1 of 3 
NLF Memorandum to Access to Justice Commission and State Bar of Nevada 
May 30, 2012 

Memorandum  

To:  Access to Justice Commission and State Bar of Nevada 
From:  Nevada Law Foundation 
Date:  May 30, 2012 
 
Re:  UPDATE on Issues Related to Supreme Court Rule 217 
 

I. April IOLTA at-a-glance 
 

 2012 2011 
Total number of IOLTAs1 2,780 2,570 
Average amount on deposit2 $276,532,570 $253,177,828 
Total reported interest accrued3 $170,381 $146,684 
Year-to-date remittance  $663,288 $569,332 

 

 
 

 
 

                                                 
1 Number of IOLTAs reported by financial institutions meeting the requirements set forth in Rule 217. 
2 Monthly revenue should not be used to project income, as IOLTA revenue has the ability to significantly fluctuate from month-to-month. 
3 Formula:  average amount on deposit * .0075 * number  of days in month  / 365 = remittance 

$220,000,000
$230,000,000
$240,000,000
$250,000,000
$260,000,000
$270,000,000
$280,000,000
$290,000,000

Average Amount On Deposit 

$140,000

$150,000

$160,000

$170,000

$180,000

$190,000

IOLTA Revenue 



Page 2 of 3 
NLF Memorandum to Access to Justice Commission and State Bar of Nevada 
May 30, 2012 

 
 

II. Financial institutions meeting requirements set forth in Rule 217 
 

A. Financial Institutions with greater than 25 IOLTAs 
 

Financial Institution 
 

Accounts 
 

Interest 
rate 

Average amount 
on deposit 

IOLTA 
remittance 

Bank of America 549 0.750 $34,820,570.62 $21,456.21 
Bank of George  27 0.750 $5,432,446.11 $3,346.84 
Bank of Nevada  309 0.750 $54,772,762.22 $34,834.38 
Bank of the West  45 1.100 $5,342,317.66 $4,390.24 
Citibank  52 0.750 $2,739,556.86 $1,527.61 
City National Bank  91 0.750 $23,537,247.00 $14,993.38 
First Independent Bank of Nevada  31 0.750 $7,329,208.45 $6,005.33 
Heritage Bank 32 0.750 $4,332,177.28 $2,734.38 
Mutual of Omaha Bank  26 0.750 $3,183,216.00 $1,962.47 
Nevada State Bank 431 0.750 $38,274,121.03 $23,889.83 
U.S. Bank  249 0.750 $14,239,729.31 $7,866.35 
Wells Fargo  806 0.750 $61,566,801.10 $33,619.18 
TOTAL 2648   $255,570,153.60 $156,662.20 

 
  

2,500
2,550
2,600
2,650
2,700
2,750
2,800

IOLTA Accounts 



Page 3 of 3 
NLF Memorandum to Access to Justice Commission and State Bar of Nevada 
May 30, 2012 

B. Financial institutions with fewer than 25 IOLTAs4 
 

Financial Institution 
 

Accounts 
 

Interest 
rate 

Average amount  
on deposit 

IOLTA 
remittance 

Financial Horizons Credit Union5  1 0.300     
First Savings Bank 2 0.750     
First Security Bank of Nevada  10 0.750     
M & I Bank  3 0.750     
Meadows Bank  12 0.750     
Nevada Bank & Trust  3 1.250     
Northern Trust Bank, FSB  3 0.750     
Plaza Bank 4 0.750     
Royal Business Bank 2 0.750   
Service First Bank of Nevada  18 0.750     
Silver State Schools Credit Union  5 1.250     
Umpqua Bank  7 0.750     
Town and Country Bank 1 0.750   
Valley Bank of Nevada 6 0.750     
TOTAL 77   $20,447,254.43 $13,689.80 

 
III. Financial institutions not meeting requirements set forth in Rule 217 

 
A. JP Morgan Chase Bank 

• Number of accounts: 55 
• Interest rate:  .15 
• Average amount on deposit: $515,162 
• IOLTA remittance: $65.44 
• Update:  Twenty IOLTAs at JP Morgan Chase Bank hold a zero balance and sixteen IOLTAs hold 

balances less than $500. 
 

 

                                                 
4 NLF does not report IOLTA remittance or average amount on deposit for financial institutions with fewer than twenty-five IOLTAs to maintain 
attorney-client and financial institution-attorney confidentiality. 
5 Member or member’s law firm does not maintain an office within twenty miles of a financial institution meeting Rule 217 requirements. 



Page 1 of 3 
NLF Memorandum to Access to Justice Commission and State Bar of Nevada 
April 30, 2012 

Memorandum  

To:  Access to Justice Commission and State Bar of Nevada 
From:  Nevada Law Foundation 
Date:  April 30, 2012 
 
Re:  UPDATE on Issues Related to Supreme Court Rule 217 
 

I. March IOLTA at-a-glance 
 

Total number of IOLTAs1 2,761 
Average amount on deposit2 $278,393,905 
Total reported interest accrued3 $168,141 
Year-to-date remittance  $492,907 

 

 
 

 
 

                                                 
1 Number of IOLTAs reported by financial institutions meeting the requirements set forth in Rule 217. 
2 Monthly revenue should not be used to project income, as IOLTA revenue has the ability to significantly fluctuate from month-to-month. 
3 Formula:  average amount on deposit * .0075 * number  of days in month  / 365 = remittance 

$220,000,000
$230,000,000
$240,000,000
$250,000,000
$260,000,000
$270,000,000
$280,000,000
$290,000,000

Average Amount On Deposit 

$140,000

$150,000

$160,000

$170,000

$180,000

$190,000

IOLTA Revenue 



Page 2 of 3 
NLF Memorandum to Access to Justice Commission and State Bar of Nevada 
April 30, 2012 

 
 

II. Financial institutions meeting requirements set forth in Rule 217 
 

A. Financial Institutions with greater than 25 IOLTAs 
 

Financial Institution Accounts Interest rate 
Average amount 

on deposit 
IOLTA 

remittance 
Bank of America 549 0.750 $32,845,329.62 $20,918.68 
Bank of George  29 0.750 $5,694,500.55 $3,623.08 
Bank of Nevada  304 0.750 $57,113,320.70 $34,516.84 
Bank of the West  46 1.110 $5,190,980.25 $4,377.73 
Citibank  51 0.750 $3,587,513.70 $2,133.14 
City National Bank  90 0.750 $19,497,605.00 $12,019.55 
First Independent Bank of NV 30 0.750 $7,351,836.26 $4,489.86 
Heritage Bank 31 0.750 $4,528,819.09 $2,785.65 
Mutual of Omaha Bank  26 0.750 $1,572,320.00 $1,001.90 
Nevada State Bank 429 0.750 $45,287,111.05 $27,552.26 
U.S. Bank  247 0.750 $13,352,552.62 $7,635.22 
Wells Fargo  797 0.750 $60,664,266.92 $33,526.34 
TOTAL 2629   $256,686,155.76 $154,580.25 

 
  

2,500
2,550
2,600
2,650
2,700
2,750
2,800

IOLTA Accounts 



Page 3 of 3 
NLF Memorandum to Access to Justice Commission and State Bar of Nevada 
April 30, 2012 

B. Financial institutions with fewer than 25 IOLTAs4 
 

Financial Institution Accounts Interest rate 
Average amount  

on deposit 
IOLTA 

remittance 
Financial Horizons Credit Union5  1 0.300     
First Savings Bank 2 0.750     
First Security Bank of Nevada  10 0.750     
M & I Bank  3 0.750     
Meadows Bank  12 0.750     
Nevada Bank & Trust  3 1.250     
Northern Trust Bank, FSB  3 0.750     
Plaza Bank 4 0.750     
Royal Business Bank 2 0.750   
Service First Bank of Nevada  3 0.750     
Silver State Schools Credit Union  5 1.250     
Umpqua Bank  7 0.750     
Valley Bank of Nevada 5 0.750     
TOTAL 77   $21,131,211.35 $13,490.24 

 
III. Financial institutions not meeting requirements set forth in Rule 217 

 
A. JP Morgan Chase Bank 

• Number of accounts: 55 
• Interest rate:  .15 
• Average amount on deposit: $576,538 
• IOLTA remittance: $70.92 
• Update:  Eighteen IOLTAs at JP Morgan Chase Bank hold a zero balance and eighteen accounts hold 

balances less than $500. 
 

 

                                                 
4 NLF does not report IOLTA remittance or average amount on deposit for financial institutions with fewer than twenty-five IOLTAs to maintain 
attorney-client and financial institution-attorney confidentiality. 
5 Member or member’s law firm does not maintain an office within twenty miles of a financial institution meeting Rule 217 requirements. 



  

Nevada Supreme Court Access to Justice Commission  

Individual Attorney Pro Bono Recognition Award-2011 Service  

Nomination Form  

 

 Nominee’s Name: 

 

 

 Nominee’s Address: 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 Nominee’s Phone Number: 

 

 

 Where does the nominee work?  If you know, for how long ? 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 On a separate sheet(s), tell us about the pro bono work this attorney has performed 

in 2011, including if you know how many approx. hours and type of work; what 

makes this individual’s commitment to public service outstanding; and if there is 

someone else we may wish to contact about this individual’s pro bono service?  
 

 

 Name, address, phone number, and email of person making this nomination: 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 Deadline for submission is August 15, 2012 

 Award Honorees will be chosen by the Commission and honored during Pro Bono 

Week 

 To be eligible, work must have been performed in the 2011 calendar year and 

constitute legal services for no fee to persons of limited means under RPC 6.1(a).  

Clinics and Ask-A-Lawyer volunteers are also eligible. 

     Please submit your nomination and direct any questions to: 

 

 Access to Justice Committee/Attn: Kristina Marzec, Director 
 Email: kristinam@nvbar.org  Phone:  702.317.1404 

mailto:kristinam@nvbar.org


 2 

The Commission is seeking submissions in the following categories: 
 

public lawyer 
most cases 
most hours 
law firm & individual significant contribution in advancing pro bono  
lifetime achievement 
legal aid lawyers/programs  
Tier 2 pro bono (reduced fee/law related education/civil rights)   
Other-  Extraordinary volunteerism in the area of civil pro bono that doesn’t fit 
into a category above, but still fits under the guidelines of RPC 6.1  

 
 



2011 UNIFORM STATEWIDE SERVICES STATISTICS
Individuals Served

(reported 2012)

Overall Program

1. Number of clients assisted without litigation: 22,960
2. Number of clients represented in litigation: 7,542
3. Numberofpeopleattendingclasses/clinics/AAl/hotlines: 145,152

Ask A Lawyer 2,084
Self Help Center 111,105
Classes/Clinics 21,921
Hotlines 5,137

Pro Bono Program

1 . Number of clients placed with pro bono attorneys 1,079
2. Total number of clients represented by pro bono attorneys 1,956
3. Individuals helped by pro bono attorneys with AAl/hotline/

Brief consultation: 3,144
4. Total recorded pro bono hours through PAI 20,250

Note: For 2011, attorney state-wide self-reported94,902 pro bono hours of direct
services

Additional Program Information- substantive areas by percentage

Public Benefits: 13.8%
Consumer/BK: 12.8%

Estate Planning: ll.6%
Family Law: 26 %
Children: 78%
Housing/Foreclosure: 263%
Other: 1.2%

These statistics were submitted using criterion developed by Legal Aid Center of
SouthernNevada; Nevada Legal Services; City of Las Vegas Senior Law Project;

Washoe Legal Services; Washoe Senior Law Project, and Volunteer Attorneys for Rural
Nevadans, and, compiled by the Access to Justice Commission.

Individual program reports are attached to this sunmary.

Please direct questions to Kristina Marzec, Director, Access to Justice Commission
Kristinam@nvbar. org * 7 02-3 17 -1 404 * 800-254-27 97



Nevada LeealServices

2011 Calendar Year Statistics for ATJ Commission

Overall Proqram

L. Number of clients assisted without litigation: LL'LLG

2. Number of clients represented with litigation: 3'943

3. Number of individuals attending classes/clinics/AAL:
(each agency break down specifics)

Family Law Self-HelP Center 65,678

Clinics, Classes, Outreach, community events, etc. L7 
'23L

TOTAL: 82.909

program Area Percentage Breakdown (Exctuding Self-Help Center and Clinics, etc.):

Consumer 3o/o

Employment 2o/o (Does not include Unemployment Benefits)

Family 3o/o

Juvenile to/o

Health 1%

Housing/Foreclosure 74%

lncome Maintenan ce !2% (lncludes Unemployment Benefits)

lndividual Rights Lo/o

Miscellaneous 3%

Pro Bono Proqram

1. Number of new clients placed with pro bono attorneys: L54

2. Total number of clients represented by pro bono attorneys: 2L6

3, Number of individuals helped by pro bono attorneys with

AAL/hotl ine/b rief consu ltation :

Pro Se Clinics 489

4. Number of pro bono hours: 178.3*
*None of the cases closed under our agreement with LACSN are reflected in this

number. We do not have total attorney hours for those cases entered into our system.



fS*FE

20L1 Calendar Year Statistics for ATJ Commission

Overall Proeram

1. Number of clients assisted without litigation:

2. Number of clients represented with litigation:

3. N umber of individuals attending classes/clinics/Ml/hotlines:
ML-L,875
sqc-45,427
Classes/Cl in ics-4,690
Hotlines-5,137

TOTAL:

Program Area Percentage Breakdown (Excludes Self Help Center):

Children: t5%
Consumer: 35%

3,2L2

2,698

57,t29

63,039

667

L,534

2,065

16,800

Estate Planning
Family Law:

L%

30%

Housing/Foreclosure: tL%
Public Benefits: 8%

Senior Citizens served: 9,233

Pro Bono PrograF

1. Number of new clients placed with pro bono attorneys:

2. Total number of clients represented by pro bono attorneys:

3. Number of individuals helped by pro bono attorneys with
ML/clinics/hotl ine/brief consu ltation :

4. Number of pro bono hours:



Washoe LegalServices

Stats for Access to Justice Comission

L/LltL-L2131/Lr

For Overall Program

Number of clients assisted without litigation
Number of clients represented with litt'gation or administrative agency

representation

2011
2,967

568

Number of individuals attending classes/clinics/ask a lawyerslhotline 3,196

TOTAL 6,531

For Pro Bono Program

Number of clients plased with pro bono attorneys 51

Number of clients with open pro bono cases L9

Number of individuals helped by pro bono attorneys with brief service/

ask a lawyer/ hotline work or other brief consultations 340

Pro bono hours L,ztA



VOLUNTEER ATTORNEYS FOR RURAL NEVADANS

201 1 REPORTING STATISTICS

OVERALL PROGRAM

Clients assisted without litigation
Clients represented in litigation
People attending classes/clinics

PRO BONO PROGRAM

1. Client placed with pro bono attorneys
2. Clients represented by pro bono attorneys

3. Individuals helped by pro bono attorneys with
Brief Consult/Lawyer in the LobbylLegal Aid Fairs

4. Total recordedpro bono hours through PAI

Clients

1.

2.

3.

1749
113

35

7T

67

209
457.17

ADDITIONAL PROGRAM INFORMATION - SUBSTANTIVE AREAS BY PERCENTAGE

Public Benefits:
Consumer/BK
Estate Planning
FamilyLaw
Children
HousinglForeclosure

0

I%
t%

9s%
0
3%



L r^s \/<gn 9

SENIOR CITIZENS LAW PROJECT

2011 Calendar Year Statistics ATJ Commission

Overall Proqram

*1 . Number of clients assisted without litigation:

**2. Number of clients assisted with litigation:

3. Number of individuals attending classes/clincs

Prog ram Area Percentage Breakdown :

Estate Planning

Consumer

Healthcare Law

Public Benefits

Guardianship

Housing

Other

2192

108

TOTAL:

1436

35o/o

13o/o

16%

2o/o

27o/o

60/o

1%

100o/o

*Fiscal year begins July 1. Under federal grant guidelines clients are only counted once during a fiscal year,

regardless of how many visits they make from July 1 - June 30. Total of direct legal services provided in 2011
is 5,949.

**This category does not include any senior attending health fair or large oommunity event, etc.



Wash o(-

SSNIOR LAV/ PROJECT

2011 Uniform Case Statistics Report

Overall Program

l. Number of clients assisted without litigation:
2. Number of clients represented in litigation:
3. Nurnber of Individuals attending classes/clinics:

1,824
112
447

Pro Bono Program

1- Number of new clients placed with pro bono attomeys 136

2- Number of clisnts withlpen pro bono cases 120

3. Number of individuals Ue$eA by pro bono attorneys w,brief service 4i

Additional Pro gram Information :

Public Benefits: 5%

Consumer: 12%
Estate Planning: 40%

Famiiy: 0

Children 0

Foreciosure/Flousing 434/a



Mandatory Pro Bono 2011 Responses (collected 2012) 

 These results are as of 5/29/2012. They have been collected from the reported mandatory 

documents, and compiled here. A total of 10,411 active and inactive members were mailed mandatory 

documents. As of this time, we do not have information on roughly 1,395 attorneys. The statistics 

follow: 

 

9016 members responded to the Mandatory Report of Pro Bono form. 

5645 members reported not doing pro bono as described in RPC 6.1. 

5 of these members reported donating hours, anyway. 

2 indicated donating hours of service, without indicating whether it was compliant or not. 

3368 members reported doing pro bono as described in RPC 6.1. 

 

Individual Groups 

Legal Aid Center of Southern Nevada:  54 members donated $110,277.2 

Las Vegas Senior Law Project:   9 members donated $4,250 

Nevada Legal Services:    20 members donated $6,415 

Nevada State Bar:    355 members donated $139,295 (actual) 

Volunteer Attorneys for Rural Nevadans: 36 members donated $14,205 

Washoe County Senior Law Project:  3 members donated $1,100 

Washoe Legal Services:    14 members donated $3,238 

Services: 

538 donated service to the Legal Aid Center of Southern Nevada 

16 donated service to the Las Vegas Senior Law Project 

121 donated service to Nevada Legal Services 

45 donated service to the Volunteer Attorneys for Rural Nevadans 

24 donated service to the Washoe County Senior Law Project 

59 donated service to Washoe Legal Services 



1906 members cited donation of service to Other Groups. 

 

2349 members reported 94901.64 hours of donated service for no fee to low income clients. 

1216 members reported 73545.1 hours of direct legal services at a substantially reduced fee. 

533 members reported 21,194.06 hours of donated service to organizations addressing needs of 

persons of limited mean. 

860 members reported 33,112.61 hours of donated service improving the law or law-related education. 



ACCESS	TO	JUSTICE	COMMISSION	
	Mandatory	Pro	Bono	Reporting	and	

Statewide	Legal	Services	
Reporting	Year	2010	

DRAFT	
Dated:      March 9, 2012 
Filed by:     Kristina Marzec 
      Commission Director 
      kristinam@nvbar.org (702) 317‐1404 

	
	

	
1. Introduction 
 
In 1996, the Nevada Supreme Court amended rule of professional conduct SCR 191 (now renumbered as 
RPC 6.1)  to make mandatory that all lawyers report to the State Bar of Nevada, along with dues 
statements, whether that lawyer performed pro bono activities as described in the rule. 
 
The purpose of mandatory reporting is, simply stated, to provide a tool to begin capturing how we are 
doing as a state in providing pro bono services across all resources, from the firm pro bono client to the 
legal aid pro bono client to activities for improving the law and the legal profession.   Prior to this rule, 
there was no central repository for statewide pro bono statistics. 
  
Nevada enjoys robust banking participation in the IOLTA program, a key funding source for legal aid 
providers.     Banks and other supporters of Access to Justice initiatives should and do expect a 
quantifiable response to the question “what is the legal profession contributing to address this issue?” 
and mandatory attorney pro bono reporting is a key avenue to accountability. 
 
Mandatory reporting forms have undergone some changes over the past five years, and state bar 
members have become more educated on the purpose and importance of pro bono reporting.   Data 
relies on the good faith self‐reporting of each member.      
 
This first annual 6.1 Pro Bono Report of the Access to Justice Commission provides calendar year 2010 
data,  along with a year‐over‐year comparison and other key resources necessary to begin capturing the 
landscape of access to justice challenges facing our communities.  
 
2.  2010 6.1 Attorney Pro Bono Self‐Reporting.  
 

Mandatory Pro Bono 2010 Responses (collected 2011) 
   
These results are as of 8/11/2011 as collected from the reported mandatory documents and compiled by 
state bar staff.   A total of 9987 active and inactive members were mailed mandatory documents.    
 



9459 members responded to the Mandatory Report of Pro Bono form. 
5422 members reported not doing pro bono as described in RPC 6.1. 
6 of these members reported donating hours, anyway. 
33 indicated donating hours of service, without indicating whether it was compliant or not. 
2894 members reported doing pro bono as described in RPC 6.1. 
 
2156 members reported 103474.21 hours of donated service for no fee to low income clients. 
 
754 members reported 37126.84 hours of donated service to organizations addressing needs of persons 
of limited means. 
 
904 members reported 33958.59 hours of donated service improving the law 

 
Individual Groups 
Legal Aid Center of Southern Nevada:    64 members donated $268,370 
Las Vegas Senior Law Project:      1 member donated $500 
Nevada Legal Services:        23 members donated $32,320 
Dues Check off:          350 members donated $154,122 (actual) 
Volunteer Attorneys for Rural Nevadans:    21 members donated $8,477 
Washoe County Senior Law Project:    14 members donated $23,431 
Washoe Legal Services:        30 members donated $31868 
 
Services: 
423 donated service to the Legal Aid Center of Southern Nevada 
16 donated service to the Las Vegas Senior Law Project 
120 donated service to Nevada Legal Services 
59 donated service to the Volunteer Attorneys for Rural Nevadans 
30 donated service to the Washoe Country Senior Law Project 
63 donated service to Washoe Legal Services 
1677 members cited donation of service to Other Groups. 

 

3.    Legal Aid Uniform Statistics 2010 
 

Overall Program 
 
1.  Number of clients assisted without litigation:      11,546     
2.  Number of clients represented in litigation:                   5,665        
3.  Number of people attending classes/clinics/AAL/hotlines:  48,724 

Ask A Lawyer       2,050       
    Self Help Center       102,239              
    Classes/Clinics                   31,720      
    Hotlines        6,457       
 
 

Pro Bono Program 
 
1. Number of clients placed with pro bono attorneys      952     
2. Total number of clients represented by pro bono attorneys  1,748 
3. Individuals helped by pro bono attorneys with AAL/hotline/          3,274 

Brief consultation:                 
4. Total recorded pro bono hours through PAI      18,165 



     
 

Additional Program Information‐ substantive areas by percentage 
 
Public Benefits:         5% 
Consumer/BK:      8.5%   
Estate Planning:       10%  
Family Law:        21% 
Children:           3%  
Housing/Foreclosure:    25% 
Other:                              27.5% 

 
These statistics were submitted using criterion developed by Legal Aid Center of Southern Nevada; 
Nevada Legal Services; City of Las Vegas Senior Law Project; Washoe Legal Services;  Washoe Senior Law 
Project, and Volunteer Attorneys for Rural Nevadans as follows: 
  

For each calendar year*, programs shall report: 
 
For overall program: 
 

1.  Number of clients** assisted without litigation (counsel and advice, brief service, and extended 
service***).   Does not include folks turned away, referred, or not helped). 

2. Number of clients represented with litigation or administrative agency representation 
3. Number of individuals attending classes/clinics/ask‐a‐lawyers 

 
For pro bono programs: 
 

1.  Number of new clients placed with pro bono attorneys 
2. Number of clients with open pro bono cases 
3. Number of individuals helped by pro bono attorneys with brief service/ask‐a‐lawyer/hotline work 

or other brief consultations. 
 
*Programs shall compile the statistics in January of each year for the previous calendar year.   
 
**Clients are defined as individuals with whom the program has an attorney‐client relationship. 
 
**Clients are counted once, even though multiple services may be performed for a client such as writing 
letters to creditors, assisting with a foreclosure, and calling a landlord. 
 
*** Many programs use these categories.  Counsel and advice usually consists of a 10‐30 minute 
consultation, brief service consists of letter writing on the client’s behalf, and extended service may be 
demand letters and negotiation or a loan modification. 

 
4.     Trending.    
Overall, the amount of lawyers reporting that they do pro bono work “yes” vs. “no” has remained fairly 
consistent, averaging about 35% of active lawyers claiming that they did do pro bono the previous year. 
 
However,  that number is disturbingly low.   Nevada has a liberal aspirational pro bono rule comparative 
to other mandatory reporting states, allowing lawyers to claim law related activities, activities for 
improving the law, and services to organizations that provide pro bono in addition to traditional direct 



case placements for no fee and reduced fees.   When you consider, for example, that in 2010, of the 
2,894 lawyers who reported “yes” to doing pro bono, 904 claimed “activities for improving the law,” 
equating to 31% of the total member population do pro bono in all categories (see fig. 4),  there are very 
few members shouldering direct legal representation in climate where less than two of every ten people 
who qualify for legal aid are able to be helped due to lack of resources.    2012 Census numbers place 
approximately 41% of Nevadans living at or below the federal poverty level, which is over 1 million 
people who qualify for legal aid ( http://statehealthfacts.org/). 
 
When you consider the 2008 Nevada Civil Legal Needs Assessment found 80% of qualifying households 
reported a civil legal problem,  the number of unmet civil legal needs today is staggering.    (See 
www.nvbar.org for the full Needs Assessment). 
 
	 2007	 2008 2009 2010
Did	you	Provide	Pro	
Bono	
1st	%=	of	active	
lawyers	
2nd	%=	of	
active+inactive		

No=	4342		
(58%/48%)	
Yes=	2690	
Active=7429	
Inactive=1544		

No=	4018	
(52%/43%)	
Yes=	2648	
Active=7739	
Inactive=1534	

No=	5732		
(76%/62%)	
Yes=	3966	
9192	total	mailed		
Inactive=	1637	

No=	5422		
(67%/54%)	
Yes=	2894	
9987	total	mailed	
Inactive	=1719	

Hours	of	Direct	
Services	

2399	lawyers	
91917	hours	

1879	lawyers
72,599	hours	

2626	lawyers
106784	hours			

2156	lawyers
103474	hours	

LACSN	 497	cases	
51	donated	
$25,322	

224	cases
31	donated	
16,427	

479	cases
62	donated	
$390350		
(includes	building	
fund)	

423	cases
64	donated	268,370	

Las	Vegas	Senior	
Law	

11 cases 
6 donated $2,600 

8 cases 
6 donated $2,800 

11	cases
6		donated	$	2125	

16	Cases	
1	Donated	$500	

NLS	 25 cases 
12 donated $4,680 

103 cases 
13 donated 
29,526 

85	cases
23		donated	$7490	

120	Cases
23	Donated	$32,320	

VARN	 29 cases 
33 donated 
$12,127  

27 cases 
40 donated 
$18,500 

45	cases
45		donated	
$16845	

59	Cases	
21	Donated	$8477	

Washoe	Senior	Law	 19 cases 
2 donated $700 

20 cases 
9 donated $1,950 

25	cases
24			donated	$7850	

30	Cases	
14	Donated	$23431	

Washoe	Legal	 43 cases 
18 donated $5,670 

59 cases 
17 donated 
$4,675 

71	cases	
4		donated	$	1200	

63	Cases	
30	Donated	$31868	

Other	 1691 1479 2130 1677	
Dues	Check	Off	
(actual)	

$92,300 $	155,510 $	185,784 $154,122	

Reduced	fee	
services	

972 provided 
63,798 hours  

803		provided	
54,	653	

1146
86585	

Question	not	
included	on	
form	

Serving	
organizations	

 
409 provided 
19,658 hours 

349	provided
15,146	hours	
	

633
52100	

754	
37127	

Activities	for	
improving	the	law	

900 provided 
32,558 hours 

723	provided	
26,609	

983
52143	

904	
33959	

Fig.	1			RPC	6.1	Pro	Bono	Reporting	Statistics		Year‐to‐Year	



	
Fig.	2					Percentage	of	Active	Lawyers	Reporting	Pro	Bono	activities	

	

	
Fig.	3	Number	of	lawyers	reporting	pro	bono	services,	any	category	

	
	

Fig.	4	Number	of	lawyers	reporting	“activities	for	improving	the	law”	



	
Fig 5.  Percentage “activities for improving the law” represents of total lawyers reporting pro bono, all categories  

	
	

Fig. 6  Number of direct services hours reported 

	

	
	

Fig. 7   Number of lawyers performing direct services reported 

	



	
Fig.  8   RPC 6.1  Donations (actual) 

 

	
5.   Outlook 

			
  Sustainable revenue streams for civil legal aid continue to decline.  Filing and court fees are 
down significantly.  Grants are being reduced or outright eliminated.   Federal funding for Legal Services 
Corporation is expected to continue sharp cuts in the coming years.  Amounts on deposit which 
generate IOLTA interest are likewise lower, and market interest rates paid on those funds are reflective 
of the current economic climate.  Nevada consistently ranks in the top of the country‐‐frequently first‐‐ 
for bankruptcy, foreclosure, unemployment, and men who murder women.   The outlook for meeting 
unmet civil legal needs is unfortunately grim, particularly taking into account that before the recession 
hit, only about 20% of people who qualify for help were able to find it.   
 

Private bar participation, philanthropy from all sectors of the community, and community 
education and activism concerning the health of access to Nevada’s civil court system has never been 
more important.   

 

	
	

_________________________________________	
Kristina	Marzec	
Access	to	Justice	Director	
State	Bar	of	Nevada	
600	E	Charleston	Blvd	
Las	Vegas	Nv	89104	
702‐317‐1404	 	

	
	
	
	

































Total number served (per Q-Matic) for month 3,915 Total number served in 2012 18,648

Total number of intake forms collected 145 % of parties returning forms 4%

Total number of intake forms sampled 145 % of collected forms sampled 4%

      White 51 36%

      Black 51 36%

      Hispanic 23 16%

      Asian 8 6%

      American Indian 2 1%

      Other 5 4%

                                    No Response Provided 5 3%

      60 and over 16 12%

                                    No Response Provided 16 11%

      Male 56 41%

      Female 82 59%

                                    No Response Provided 7 14%

     District Court 24 24%

     Justice Court 76 76%

            Las Vegas 5 7%

            Henderson 0 0%

            North Las Vegas 0 0%

            Other 1 1%

                          No Case or No Response Provided 45 31%

      Yes 2 2%

      No 118 98%

                                    No Response Provided 25 17%

      One 71 59%

      Two 24 20%

      Three 10 8%

      More 15 13%

                                    No Response Provided 25 17%

      Appeal 11 8%

      Auto Sale/Lease, Repair, Towing 0 0%

      Consumer Debt or Loan 10 7%

      Contract Dispute 4 3%

      Employment Dispute 0 0%

      Foreclosure Mediation Assistant 9 7%

      Garnishment or Execution 4 3%

      Harassment or Protection Order 7 5%

Age:

Sex:

Court Case Pending In:

CIVIL LAW SELF-HELP CENTER STATISTICS
May 2012

5/1/2012 to 5/31/2012 (22 operating days)

General

Biographical Data
Ethnicity:

Represented by an Attorney:

Number of Visits to the SHC:

Reason for Visit to the SHC:

Page 1



      Homeowner Eviction 4 3%

      Judicial Review 1 1%

      Landlord/Tenant Dispute or Eviction 65 47%

      Mediation 0 0%

      Mobile Home Sales, Repairs, or Eviction 9 6%

      Personal Injury/Property Damage 1 1%

      Small Claims Case 6 4%

      Other 17 12%

                                    No Response Provided 8 6%

      Yes 59 43%

      No 78 57%

                                    No Response Provided 8 6%

      Under $10,000 44 41%

      $10,000 to $20,000 22 20%

      $20,000 to $30,000 17 16%

      $30,000 to $40,000 5 5%

      $40,000 to $50,000 11 10%

      $50,000 plus 9 8%

                                    No Response Provided 37 26%

      Social Security/Disability 27 35%

      Unemployment 13 17%

      TANF/Food Stamps 50 64%

      Subsidized Housing Benefits 2 3%

      No Response Provided or No Benefits Received 67 46%

Out of total providing satisfaction information:

      Very Satisfied 111 80%

      Satisfied 26 19%

      Unsatisfied 0 0%

      Very Unsatisfied 1 1%

                                    No Response Provided 7 5%

      Strongly Agree 96 75%

      Agree 28 22%

      Disagree 1 1%

      Strongly Disagree 0 0%

      No Opinion 3 2%

                                    No Response Provided 17 12%

      Strongly Agree 96 73%

      Agree 32 24%

      Disagree 0 0%

      Strongly Disagree 1 1%

      No Opinion 2 2%

                                    No Response Provided 14 10%

Satisfaction Data

Employed:

The staff was knowledgeable and listened to what I had to say:

Benefits Received:

Annual Household Income:

Overall satisfaction:

The staff's explanations and answers to my questions were clear and understandable:

I understand the court process and my situation better now than before I came to the Self-Help Center:

Page 2



      Strongly Agree 77 60%

      Agree 39 30%

      Disagree 0 0%

      Strongly Disagree 1 1%

      No Opinion 12 9%

                                    No Response Provided 16 11%

      Strongly Agree 84 65%

      Agree 42 33%

      Disagree 0 0%

      Strongly Disagree 0 0%

      No Opinion 2 2%

      Did Not Receive Forms or Materials this Visit 1 1%

                                    No Response Provided 16 11%

      Strongly Agree 94 72%

      Agree 30 23%

      Disagree 0 0%

      Strongly Disagree 0 0%

      No Opinion 4 3%

      Did not fill out forms during this visit 2 2%

                                    No Response Provided 15 10%

      Strongly Agree 57 46%

      Agree 24 19%

      Disagree 1 1%

      Strongly Disagree 0 0%

      No Opinion 9 7%

      Have Not Visited the Website 33 27%

                                    No Response Provided 21 14%

Pamela is a "life saver". She is detailed, articulate, instructional, conscientious and kind. She over-simplifies

Lunes metravon view. A malves

Cicso was very helpful.

I was very pleased with the process and how my services were taken care of today.

Thank God for the Help Center - everyone else in the courts were very nasty and unhelpful.

They are very helpful and knowledgeable people.

In filling out my forms today, the staff's assistance and direction was helpful:

Informative

Very courteous, patient, helpful on computer at which I am not good at. Thank you so much Pam

Excellent and knowledgeable staff, very polite.

The assisting lady saved my a** by giving me prompt right info & advise! Thank again Ms. Pam

A personal thanks to her!

Anna was very helpful and informative; she was excellent.

Happy I have a place that helps.

The staff are very kind & helpful.  They're doing great job.

Very helpful and explanatory.

Very helpful, answered all my questions.

The forms and other written materials at the Self-Help Center were clear, helpful, and instructional:

Other Comments and Suggestions

The Self-Help Center's website was user-friendly and informative:

Thank you Pam for all your help - love ya!

The staff was very helpful, especially Cisco.

     instructions and answers. Her compassion warrants a raise.

We are very thankful for all the assistance we received in your office. Thank you so much

Page 3



Pam was very clear and direct in helping understand what the laws are and what were my rights.

Pam was very helpful in directing us in the right form needed, thank you!

Great attitude and very compassionate.

Very kind, knowledgeable staff.

Everyone was very patient and nice and answered all my questions very well I couldn't of done it without them.

Each time I've used this center, staff was knowledgeable, helpful and made the process easier.

Cisco was informative and helpful. The employees here were very patient and helpful.

Very good!

Muy buena atencion me dieron.

Anna was so good in helping me. I don't even know how to thank her. Thank you so much!

It is very helpful and I understand it.

Prompt, knowledgeable service.

Es una gran hayoda en estos tiempos de hambruna y desempleo.

Very helpful and patient.

Very helpful in explaining and filing out forms A+++ Cisco was excellent!!!

The office is very helpful to me at this time.

     and come up with money

Great help. Thanks!

More on-line access to layman filers.

Really good help from the staff - good job!

Thank you for the help.

Lupe was extremely helpful the last time and today in helping me.

     We're just trying to fill out some papers.  We are not criminals and deserve respect from the court staff.

The lady helping us was very friendly and helpful. It made a stressful day so much better. Thanks!

(Cisco) The staff member that help me was nice and helpful thank you.

Expertise, found information quickly

Cisco was very knowledgeable and was very helpful.

It doesn't make sense that the court and Self Help Center use different format forms.

Thank you for this service.

Very helpful.  Easy to understand & filling out forms & procedures.

     & pending an RO.

Thank you!

Cisco Gonzalez was very helpful and nice.

Thank so much!

The main tenants name is Anthony Abruzzo which also has a pending case of burglary w/ a detective

It's a shame that the landlord can give you 5 days that not cool, but it take longer to find a good school

Page 4



Page 5



Page 6



Page 7



Page 8



Page 9



State Bar of Nevada E-News  
June 7, 2012 

 

 

Project Salute Comes to Nevada to Help the State's Veterans 
   
The Nevada Supreme Court Access to Justice Commission, the Young Lawyers Section, and Nevada 
Legal Services are joining forces to bring Project Salute to Nevada. Project Salute is an ABA Young 
Lawyers Division's project. Its objective is encouraging attorneys  
to help veterans obtain their Veteran Affairs benefits. 
  
The event kicks off on Monday, November 12 in both Las Vegas and Reno. Volunteer attorneys must 
be VA certified prior to the event's launch date and must take part in a relevant three-hour CLE within 
12 months of certification. Application forms and instructions are available on the state bar's website.   
  
Certification can take up to 90 days, so those wishing to take part should turn in their applications 
as soon as possible. Certified attorneys will be able to participate in a free CLE in October in order to 
complete their requirements for participation. 
  
Those interesting in volunteering should contact southern Nevada project chair Kevin Kam at 
kevinkam777@hotmail.com or northern Nevada project chair Jordan Davis 
at  jadavis@lionelsawyer.com.   
 
 
 

   

 

http://r20.rs6.net/tn.jsp?e=001irS3rMkCwTQRJDQSVXUcUI1J6DGNmNxNeofUn6oXuCVFh04WMGL8ErHbIR7iS66j6OkZRG5vABkegjt89tm_FQlyb4w3ioJFldSPK5t79CsLUieYdaYmS4w-gj25DQWyDLeT-_JH9SLzrGQce1DtMEvRvAnfsJ2bQDOfpkDhizbYiR4-mEZb9Y_8T_YF4h0B
mailto:kevinkam777@hotmail.com
mailto:jadavis@lionelsawyer.com


















































 

          
                                 Commission Calendar/Important events 
              2012 
 
 

Nevada Legal Services recurring clinics and classes: attached.  
Washoe Legal Services recurring clinics and classes:  

LAWYER IN THE LIBRARY - Every Wednesday evening from 5:00-7:00 p.m.  
LAWYER IN THE LIBRARY FOR FAMILY LAW - Every Tuesday evening from 5:00-7:00 p.m.  
MONTHLY LEGAL SEMINAR- FREE. Usually held the last Thursday every month. Topics are posted below at 
the beginning of each month.  
 

Jun 
 6/29 Commission Meeting, SBN Annual Convention 9-11:30 

6/30 Divorce Class 9:00 - 11:00 (LACSN) 
 
July 
 
 7/1  Southern Nevada Senior Law Program Launch  
 7/2   Spanish Family Law Class  1:30- 3:30  (LACSN) 
   Bankruptcy Class  3:30-5:30  (LACSN) 
   Divorce Class  6-8 (LACSN)  
 7/3  Bankruptcy Class  3:30-5:30 (LACSN) 
 7/5  Spanish Small Claims  1:3o-3:30  (LACSN) 
   Guardianship Class 3:30-5:30  (LACSN) 

7/25  Federal Court Ask-A-Law  (LASCN) 
 
 
Sept   
 t/b/d  set specialty bar meeting 
 t/b/d  set small and mid firm meeting 

t/b/d  set Commission Meeting 
 
 
Oct   

10/23  Basics of Representing Children in Abuse and Neglect Cases (Free CLE-LACSN) 
9:00 a.m. to 12:15 p.m.  
Sponsored by Legal Aid Center of Southern Nevada and William S. Boyd School of Law 
Boyd School of Law Thomas and Mack Moot Court Room Facility  
 

10/29-Nov 2 National Celebrate Pro Bono Week 
 10/29  Celebrate Pro Bono Community Mixer & Statewide awards  
 
Nov   
 

t/b/d  set Commission Meeting 
 11/11  Project Salute- Las Vegas and Reno 
 11/14    Basics of Family Law (Free CLE-LACSN) 

9:00 a.m. - 12:15 p.m. 
Sponsored with the State Bar of Nevada and Legal Aid Center 
Lloyd D. George--U.S. Federal Courthouse-Jury Assembly Room 

    
Dec   
 
 12/7  LACSN Annual Pro Bono Awards Luncheon  
 



2012 Nevada Legal Services Events 

Indian Law CLE, co-sponsored by NLS, Legal Aid Center of Southern Nevada and Ballard Spahr 

 Friday, May 11, 2012 1:00 pm – 4:00 pm 
 
Where: Ballard Spahr, 100 North City Parkway, Suite 1750 
Topics: Indian law background, jurisdiction for civil and criminal issues, family law with tribal 
members, and doing business on a reservation 
Presenters:  Lee Storey, Esq., Partner, Ballard Spahr 
  Anna Marie Johnson, Esq., Executive Director, Nevada Legal Services 
  Kim Robinson, Esq., Indian Law Attorney, Nevada Legal Services 
Cost: Free to attorney willing to accept any topic area pro bono case or volunteer with either 
LACSN or NLS. 

 
Pahrump Small Claims Class, Taught by Bill Curran, Esq., Managing Partner, Ballard Spahr, 
 Pahrump Library, 701 East Street, Pahrump, NV 89048 
  April 18, 2012 from 1:30 p.m. – 3:30 p.m.  

 Ask A Lawyer Event 
East Event Area at The Boulevard Mall, 3528 South Maryland Parkway, Las Vegas, NV 89169 
  June 16, 2012 from 10:00 a.m. – 2:00 p.m.  

 
 Foreclosure Information classes at The Orleans Hotel & Casino 
 4500 W. Tropicana Avenue Las Vegas, Nevada 89103 
 
April 14  12 p.m. - 3 p.m.  Salon A  
April 25 10 a.m. - 1 p.m.  Salon A  
May 4 12 p.m. - 3 p.m.  Salon D  
May 15 2 p.m. - 5 p.m.  Salon A  
May 30 10 a.m. - 1 p.m.  Salon A  
June 4 2 p.m. - 5 p.m.  Salon A  
June 16 10 a.m. - 1 p.m.  Salon A  
June 27 12 p.m. - 3 p.m.  Salon A  
 

Pahrump Ask A Lawyer at Stovall & Associates, 3250 S. Highway 160, Suite 6, Pahrump, NV 89048 

 Second Tuesday of each month from 1:30 p.m. - 3:30 p.m. 

  General civil law questions addressed and assistance with court forms 

Las Vegas office, 530 S. Sixth Street classes: 

Small Claims Class, every Friday (except holidays) from 2:30 p.m. - 4:30 p.m. 

Spanish Small Claims Class, every other Thursday from 1:30 p.m. - 3:30 p.m. 

Tenants’ Rights Center at Las Vegas office, 530 S. Sixth Street 

 Open Monday through Friday from 8:30 a.m. – 4:00 p.m. 



 

 Page 1 of 7 

Minutes March 9, 2012 

  

   Nevada Supreme Court Access to Justice Commission 
Quarterly Meeting 

Date:  Friday, March 9, 2012  
Time:  1 pm- 4 pm 

 
Three main  video-conference locations  
Las Vegas 
Court Room,  17

th
 Floor 

Regional Justice Center 
200 Lewis Ave., Las Vegas, 89101 

Carson City 
Court Room 
Supreme Court Building 
201 S. Carson Street, Carson City, 89701  

 

Reno 
Large Conference Room, #214 
2

nd
 Judicial District Court  

75 Court Street, Reno, 89501 

     

Draft Minutes 

Commission members in attendance:  

Justice Michael Douglas  Co-Chair  
Justice James Hardesty  Co-Chair  
Barker  Hon. David 
Cooney  Valerie 
Doherty Hon. Francis  
Elcano             Paul 
Goldsmith Dara     
Hancock Emily 
Johnson AnnaMarie  
Kandt             W. Brett 
Kushnir  Melanie    
Perlick  Jessica    
Sternberg Ira David 
Traum  Professor Anne   
Vogel  Sugar  
Staff: 
Marzec  Kristina  Director 
 
Invitees/guests in attendance: 
Ackridge  Connie   President, State Bar of Nevada 
Anderson-Fintak Heather  NLS, Pro Bono Coordinator, Southern Nevada 
Atkin   Trevor   Nevada Law Foundation Trustee 
Berchtold  Jim   Supervising attorney, Family Law Self Help Center, 8th Judicial District 
Buckley   Barbara   Executive Director, Legal Aid Center of Southern Nevada 
Farmer   Kimberly  Executive Director, State Bar of Nevada  
Goldsmith  Dara   President, Nevada Law Foundation  
Gudenkauf  Gregory  Nevada Law Foundation Development Director 
Hancock  Emily   Interim Supervising attorney, Washoe Senior Law Project 
Hardy   Dean   President, LACSN Board of Directors 
Hatch   Elana   Southern Nevada Senior Law Project 
Neilson   Ernie   Washoe Senior Law Program- retired 
Phenix   Shannon  UNLV Boyd School of Law, PILA 
Ramm   Sally   Division for Aging Services 
Roberts   Lee   Nevada Law Foundation Trustee 
Mckelvey  Kim   ALPS Foundation services (by telephone) 
Winckler  Garth   Nevada Law Foundation Trustee 
Leung   Hon. Cynthia  Las Vegas Municipal Court 
Weiss   Hon. Jerry  8th Judicial District Court 



 

Page 2 of 7 
Minutes March 9, 2012 

 

 

 
 
 
Meeting called to order at 1:10.  

 
Nevada Law Foundation Report 

 
Board. The Board plans on filing an ADKT request to lower the maximum required board members and 

provide for a range in size allowed under the rule to facilitate quorums.   Mr. Mckelheny resigned.   A report will be 
filed with the Court in advance of June 2012 addressing open trustee appointments and reappointments. 
 

Fundraising and Development. Garth Winckler summarized recent changes in the fundraising and 
development committee.   It is now a committee of the whole, the previous fundraising and development policies to 
be sunsetted, and adding the position of chair  to the executive committee.  Identified funds from building revenue 
and board fundraising were used to hire Gregory Gudenkoff, the new Development Director, who is working three 
days a week at present with a view towards growing to a full time position.  Mr. Gudenkoff was in attendance.  
 

The Committee is putting together three action teams with an aggressive agenda to raise funds throughout 
the community.    The first effort will be the financial committee, with a goal of at least a million over the next four 
years.   Agenda includes donor development (to identify specific people for cultivation, young lawyers, experienced 
lawyers, and population segments yet to be identified) and acquired donor development software.    Another team 
will be looking at rebranding and case development, image, and logo.  The third team will review strategy, 
timetables, and working without competing with others.   The goal is to grow donor directed and other funds beyond 
IOLTA, building long term relationships with donors.   
 

Financials. ALPS summarized the written financial reports provided in the agenda.  
 

Fixed Rate/Bank of Nevada.  The Foundation apprised the Commission that Bank of Nevada asked to lower 
the fixed IOLTA rate to .40 APY, and was expecting action no later than the summer Commission meeting.    The NLF 
Board talked about the request, noting there were no requests to lower the rate from any other participating bank.   
A Trustee suggested the possibility of obtaining CRA status for the amount the banks are paying over and above 
comparability, which is being done in California.  The NLF discussed with Bank of Nevada, which was amendable to 
considering it in lieu of lowering the rate.    Also noted that detailed, exhaustive grantee reporting would be 
necessary if this goes through, and thus NLF may have to amend reporting forms again to ensure CRA compliance.   
ALPS commented that historically banks are not getting CRA credit so if we do this, the reports will need to highly 
localized and focused on detailed service and poverty demographics.    

 
The Commission noted the timeline is very short to resolve this in time for the next Commission meeting in 

summer.  The NLF agreed this is a top priority for them and they will come back with more information within the 
next 30-60 days. 
 

Colleagues program.   The NLF sent 159 letters to current colleagues to clarify their understanding regarding 
whether donations were restricted.   Among the 20% responding,  there was an even split between those intending a 
restricted endowment vs. unrestricted funds.   The current interest benchmark for that restricted fund is 2 million.  
Once it reaches that mark the endowment will release the interest for granting.  
 
The Co-Chairs thanked the Foundation for its hard work and for coming through on the promise of what the 
Commission had requested. 



 

 Page 3 of 7 

Minutes March 9, 2012 

  

Public Lawyers 
 
Brett Kandt discussed his efforts to increase participation, awareness, and reporting of pro bono service by public 
lawyers.   Referencing a detailed report of public lawyers’ 6.1 reporting for the prior calendar year (provided to the 
Commission under separate cover),  there is still a long way to ensure that public lawyers are accurately reporting the 
work currently being done.   Noted that this likely can be extrapolated to all lawyers.  
 
Mr. Kandt reported on his efforts to increase the education to public lawyers regarding what they can report and 
what falls under the rule, including the NDA association, prosecution counsel, advisory council, and public lawyers 
section of the Bar. Justice Hardesty has also spoken at some of those meetings.      
 
On a positive note, the offices to which these efforts to reach out were made have better reporting based on this 
report so the process is  working.     All stakeholders are encouraged to continue to provide information on 
opportunities whether that be through legal aid, direct cases, during law week or otherwise, or Law Related 
Education.  The more we promote and advertise those opportunities the easier it is for those attorneys to identify 
what they are interested in and might want to do. 
 
Judge Doherty suggested that a similar education be kept in the forefront of the court when and that judges should 
be reporting improving the law work that they do.  
 
Legal Aid Center advised that they recently met with the AG and all of the individual team leaders in that office, 
which as a result is now participating in homeless ask a lawyer.   LACSN also has great participation with both the US 
Attorney and the Federal Public Defenders Offices.  Suggested that providers should collaborate on a specific 
resource for public lawyers. 
 
Las Vegas Senior Law Project 
 
Sugar Vogel announced that the program is going public. City management informed it can no longer fund the 
general contribution, and the city council approved the formation of a non-profit.   The council also approved in-kind 
and direct assistance.  As such, they have incorporated the Southern Nevada Senior Law Program.  Justice Shearing is 
the Chair, the 501(c )(3) is pending with the IRS, and the program is situated with the Nevada Community Foundation 
so funds can be processed immediately.   Because they have secured the ability to remain in their current location, 
that will save relocation dollars.  There are three full time and three part time attorneys staying on.  Clerical staff has 
been reduced for efficiencies.  There will be no interruption in services, and services are funded at current levels 
through the next two years.  The city will be providing software and computers.  The SNSLP will be looking at 
upgrading software.  Same location, same attorneys, all services stay the same, going from a four day work week to a 
five day work week, with just a slight name change to launch on July 1, 2012. 
 
Legal Aid Center noted that it had offered to merge as an option, and that is was disappointing an agreement could 
not be reached in that regard.   It is the feeling of the LACSN board such a merger would save administration costs 
that could be used for attorneys.  The Board was very enthusiastic about the merger and looking at new ways of 
doing things.  Their concern is still about efficient utilization of resources and serving the community.   
 
Sugar Vogel thanked LACSN for its candor and noted time was a factor in the current decision to go non-profit, along 
with the strong feedback they had received from the local senior community.   They, stakeholders, and the city were 
very concerned about keeping senior services seamless, separate, and intact.   The SLP remains open to further 
conversations going forward and is not precluding anything in the statewide service delivery scheme going forward.  
 
 



 

Page 4 of 7 
Minutes March 9, 2012 

 

 

Washoe Senior Law Project  
 
Emily Hancock reported on behalf of the Washoe Senior Law Project.  The WSLP is in fairly stable condition. Ernie 
Nielson, who retired as of January, is still volunteering, and the program has one full time attorney, two paralegals, 
and two clerical staff.   They will be adding a half-time contract attorney.   The foreclosure program is primarily run by 
contract employees, and will transition to Nevada Legal Services at the end of June (that program serves everyone, 
not just seniors).  They are in the process of hiring a full time directing attorney to replace Emily, who is leaving this 
month. 
  
The Commission noted some concerns that were shared with stakeholders in the north, the largest being that current 
staffing configurations are sufficient to meet the need and the effect of service shortages on guardianships.  The Co-
Chairs suggested that the chief district court judge was open to having a meeting of the stakeholders from that 
district to discuss service concerns and would be contacting people to set that up.   The Commission cautioned 
generally to remain mindful that competing for charity dollars among all access to justice stakeholders needs to be 
approached with caution.   
 
Sally Ramm stated that independent living grants provide all of the funding for guardianship in Washoe (and Clark) 
County, and the Division for Aging Services is keeping an eye on those funds.  
 
The Co-Chairs asked the providers to start providing a catalogue of services to the Commission, via Kristina, that can 
be distributed.  Services given to seniors specifically should be listed independently.   
 

Talking Points from Legal Aid Executive Directors.    Paul Elcano noted that the executive directors had identified 
several talking points at their quarterly meetings that are relevant to the discussion about senior services as iterated 
below: 
 

1. The role of the state Supreme Court and the Access to Justice Commission in approving and/or determining 
the entities who deliver legal services  in the state of Nevada 

2.      The most efficient method by which senior law project legal services can be delivered in the state of Nevada 

3.      Economies of scale and salary structures in the private vs. public sector 

4.      Economies of scale via reduction of the number of service providers i.e.: common reception, reduced 
administration, etc. 

5.      Reduction in organizational conflict with fewer providers 

6.      Easier and better accountability as a result of private sector delivery mechanisms 

7.      Constitutional issues:  i.e. separation of powers, whether Judicial arm can generate funds via IOLTA and Bar 
Dues as a mechanism for funding governmental entities.   

1-  

 
 
VARN.    Valerie Cooney advised that the rurals have lost the majority of its funding sources, including federal grants 
and LSC reductions in the support for the pro bono project.   The rurals have experienced a disproportionate 
reduction in 6.1 dues-check off contributions as well.   There is however a significant gain in VAWA grants.  No staff 
reductions so far, holding at four attorneys and four support staff.   VARN has reorganized responsibilities and cut 
down on expenses to maintain current services and staff.   She is optimistic that they will receive funding for 
videoconferencing so they may expand partnerships with UNR extension offices and community colleges to support 
and expand ask a lawyer and other clinics, as well as reach attorneys that would otherwise have to travel large 
distances. 
 
 



 

 Page 5 of 7 

Minutes March 9, 2012 

  

Nevada Legal Services.  AnnaMarie Johnson noted everyone is suffering with cuts from the federal government.  The 
biggest cuts to NLS are through LSC, in addition to HUD and other federal grants.   NLS has lost well over 500K, and as 
a result had to make some serious decisions how to best continue to service clientele, as unemployment remains 
high and needs are still there.  Their goal is to continue to have as close to the same amount of staff statewide as 
possible in 2012.  One of the things NLS reluctantly had to do was to close one physical office in Carson City, although 
it was stressed there is no reduction in staff, just the physical office space.    NLS is renting office space in Carson City 
(for 1$/year at Circles), staffed 2 days a week (in kind support being received from Circles).  Barring congress 
overturning the supercommittee, NLS will get another 10% funding cut at the end of the year.  
 
NLS continues all clinics, held on a monthly basis and advertised in the local papers in Elko, Carson, and Ely. 
Good news to report is for the first time, NLS has an increase in funding for Indian services.  They now have funds for 
two full time and two half time attorneys in Indian law in both criminal and civil tribal courts, along with quarterly 
training  for tribal court advocates.   Julie Cavanaugh-Bill has been helping with this very popular program.  
The low income tax payer clinic has also taken off.   NLS is the first legal services organization in the nation to run the 
tax court calendar certification.   NLS had more pro bono attorneys volunteer to man the booth on April 15 than 
there were slots for, so they took names for the next time it comes around in late September.  Nevada has the 
highest rate of pro se litigants in tax courts in the nation.  The clinics will take place in both Reno and Las Vegas tax 
courts. 
 
Washoe Legal Services.   
 
Paul Elcano reporting funding is holding relatively solid and they are still providing substantively same areas, recently 
adding bankruptcy and mortgage. There is a cut in the LAV grant.   
 
LACSN 
 
Barbara Buckley reported LACSN just finished its unit goal setting for this year.  
Childrens unit is going to focus on mental health system- overmedicated and mental services, including a demand 
letter to the state.  
 
There is a continuing scourge of petition preparers in the immigrant community- focus on creating alternatives: 

1- adding a class in Spanish on BK and doing outreach in community 
2- create a more comprehensive immigration legal delivery system 

a. met with catholic charities and 2 UNLV professors. Thinking about doing a class in September.  
Clients would go to catholic charities, and LACSN would take VAWA and ERISA  to free up the law 
school clinics.  Website and docs will be developed to go along with it, along with a monthly  class 
“do you have a path.” 

3- Once we do that, we have more to offer in the public service campaigns 
4- Law day celebration-  May.  NLS and SLP will participate- 20 lawyers in a room at east las vegas community 

center 
5- new pro bono opportunity for Sealing Of Records in partnership with FIT (training program). FIT will screen all 

the clients, do the paperwork.   
6- PBS just taped divorce classes that will ship to everyone else around the State Bar of Nevada  
7- LAV is very disappointing.   Grant itself was reduced.  
8- Noted that LASCN is very encouraged about NLF news relayed today and thanked NLF for its work.   

 
 
Self Help Centers  Referencing the report provided, the civil law self-help numbers continue to climb and satisfaction 
remains very high.  NLS noted that the family law self-help center statistics went down about 40 thousand people 



 

Page 6 of 7 
Minutes March 9, 2012 

 

 

because not as many people can afford to get divorced, although there are still a tremendous amount of people 
walking through the door at sixty thousand plus a year.   The Center now has family law forms on the website, online, 
fill-in with automated e-filing.  There is staff to help with forms in the kiosks during business hours.  
 
Public Speakers Bureau 
 
Justice Hardesty is overseeing a working group, chaired by Judge Sullivan, to develop and roll out a public speakers 
bureau.  The working group is researching developing a video for statewide use (that might include editing existing 
videos currently in use by individual programs), marketing and presentation piece for uniform presentation, and a list 
of service organizations and others which will be our first focus.  Kristina circulated the powerpoint and handouts 
used during the last marketing campaign as a jumping off point.  
 
Project Salute-  
 
As the first prong of the ATJC veterans’ initiative, Nevada Legal Services and the Family Law Section have teamed up 
with Access to Justice to launch Project Salute in Nevada in fall 2012.   Information about the national program is 
available at www.statesidelegal.org.   
 
Emeritus attorney program 
LACSN recently went to a meeting of all general counsel who qualify for emeritus service, and partnered with the 
State Bar to send out an email to all inactive members in the South highlighting Ask-a-lawyer opportunities, to some 
limited response. Kristina noted that Utah has a robust emeritus program that centers on three prongs:  (1)  member 
services staff actively soliciting members to consider emeritus status when they call to request to go inactive, (2) 
taking advantage of a large corporate presence and (3) amending the in-house counsel certification rule to 
automatically allow emeritus service (without having to separately apply under the emeritus rule as well).     Some 
permutation of that might be effective in Nevada.  Justice Douglas asked that Commissioners consider that as well as 
other ideas and bring them to Kristina’s attention. 
 
Ira David Sternberg 
 
Mr. Sternberg was introduced as a new Commissioner and briefly outlined his hopes for 2012, to include working 
with the public speakers bureau group, crafting a definitive marketing plan and branding for the Commission as a 
separate entity, finding new sources of support for communications and marketing to include untapped support in 
addition to the legal community, and, securing pro bono PR assistance for the Commission.  
 
Calendaring 
 
Next Commission meeting-  Annual Convention, June 29th , 9 am to 11:30.  Phone conference will be available.  This 
will be the one in-person meeting for 2012.     
 
The Commission also discussed the Thursday pro bono session at the annual convention and proffered ideas for the 
format and substance of the session at the request of Barbara Buckley, who volunteered to coordinate the  planning 
to be attended by LACSN, VARN, NLS, LVSLP, and WLS.  
 
Justice Douglas directed that everyone get in the practice of copying Kristina with individual program event 
calendaring so we can develop a statewide event calendar for all ATJC and pro bono related activities statewide.  
 
Kristina and the Justices to meet later in the afternoon to confirm dates for the large law firm meetings. 

http://www.statesidelegal.org/


 

 Page 7 of 7 

Minutes March 9, 2012 

  

  
Other Business 
  
UNLV Professor Christine Smith was honored in DC for her community service   
 
Justice Hardesty announced the Court will be inviting all  bar members to hear US Supreme Court Justice Kennedy 
speak at the Judicial State Summit on May 1 at the M Resort.   Commissioners and stakeholders are enthusiastically 
encouraged to attend.  
 
Liberty Bell Dedication- Friday May 4 at 3pm    



Submitted for discussion by Melanie Kushnir, LACSN 

Top Judge Makes Free Legal Work Mandatory for Joining State Bar 

Nathaniel Brooks for The New York Times 

Attorney General Eric T. Schneiderman, left, and Chief Judge Jonathan Lippman marked Law 

Day in Albany on Tuesday.  

By ANNE BARNARD   Published: May 1, 2012  

Starting next year, New York will become the first state to require lawyers to perform unpaid 

work before being licensed to practice, the state’s chief judge announced on Tuesday, describing 

the rule as a way to help the growing number of people who cannot afford legal services.  

The approximately 10,000 lawyers who apply to the New York State Bar each year will have to 

demonstrate that they have performed 50 hours of pro bono work to be admitted, Chief Judge 

Jonathan Lippman said. He said the move was intended to provide about a half-million hours of 

badly needed legal services to those with urgent problems, like foreclosure and domestic 

violence.  

The need has exploded in recent years as the economic crisis delivered what advocates for the 

poor call a triple whammy: more people are struggling financially; more people need legal 

services to cope with foreclosures, evictions and credit and employment problems that could 

push them into long-term poverty; and state and federal financing for legal services has plunged.  

The Legal Aid Society, the nation’s largest provider of free legal services, turns away eight of 

every nine people seeking help with civil legal matters, said Steven Banks, the New York 

group’s attorney in chief. Since the economic downturn began in 2008, Mr. Banks said, requests 

for assistance have jumped 40 percent for health care issues, 54 percent for unemployment 

insurance and work-related problems, 16 percent for domestic violence and “a stunning 800 

percent” for foreclosures.  

While criminal defendants have a constitutional right to free legal representation, defendants in 

civil cases — as well as people who need legal help for essential needs like applying for 

disability benefits — do not.  

In his three years at the helm of the state’s court system, Judge Lippman has made New York a 

national model and has been praised in the legal profession by addressing what he calls the 

justice gap, allocating millions of dollars from the courts’ administrative budget for free legal 

services and making it easier for retired lawyers to take pro bono cases.  

But his latest measure may prove more controversial, some of his admirers said, because it 

wades into a fierce debate among lawyers over whether mandatory pro bono service is the right 

solution — and because it could hit the pocketbooks of young lawyers at a time when they are 

struggling to find jobs. Judge Lippman and the court administrative board have the power to do 

http://topics.nytimes.com/top/reference/timestopics/people/b/anne_barnard/index.html?inline=nyt-per
http://topics.nytimes.com/top/reference/timestopics/people/l/jonathan_lippman/index.html?inline=nyt-per


so because, unlike in many other states, the New York court system, and not the bar association, 

sets the requirements.  

“Lawyers do not like to be told what to do,” said Esther Lardent, president of the Pro Bono 

Institute, a nonprofit group that works with law firms to improve their pro bono services. “I 

worry about poor people with lawyers who don’t want to be there.”  

In New Jersey, lawyers have long complained about a 20-year-old court order that allows judges 

to assign private lawyers in their counties to certain cases that are not covered by its public 

defenders. Some lawyers can win exceptions, but many argue that the burden is unevenly spread, 

falling more heavily in counties that have fewer available lawyers.  

Supporters of the plan acknowledge that it will require more training and supervision for law 

students and recent graduates, who can file legal papers and appear in court if they are 

supervised. But they said they hoped it would dovetail with an increasing focus in many law 

schools on clinics that provide practical experience.  

Because New York is a magnet for top law schools across the country, its bar requirements could 

help prompt the expansion of pro bono work elsewhere, said Don Saunders, a vice president at 

the National Legal Aid and Defender Association in Washington, who called Judge Lippman’s 

work to increase the amount of money for legal services “groundbreaking.”  

Ms. Lardent, who supports pro bono requirements for law students, said she liked a “big 

audacious idea” if it did not place undue burdens on young lawyers who face a difficult job 

market and, if they are new to New York, may need help finding appropriate pro bono work.  

For his part, Judge Lippman made clear that he believed the requirement would be a source of 

satisfaction to most lawyers and would not be onerous — it could be completed in a weeklong 

summer internship, members of his staff noted.  

Pro bono work would be defined to include steps like representing poor people in civil court and 

legal work for a nonprofit group or government agency.  

“The legal profession should not be seen as argumentative, narrow or avaricious,” Judge 

Lippman said in Albany at one of the many Law Day ceremonies held around the country on 

Tuesday to celebrate the rule of law, “but rather one that is defined by the pursuit of justice and 

the desire to assist our fellow man.”  

Because detailed regulations have yet to be drafted, it is unclear whether lawyers moving to New 

York in the middle of their careers would be affected, or whether the work would have to be 

completed in the state. The graduates of New York law schools in 2010 made up less than half of 

the new lawyers admitted to the bar.  

Judge Lippman said that while the preference was for work in New York, there would probably 

be provisions to allow recent law graduates to count work done while in law school elsewhere.  

http://www.probonoinst.org/
http://www.probonoinst.org/


 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
Standing Committee on the  
Delivery of Legal Services 

 

2011 
Year in Review 

 
 
 
 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 



ABA Standing Committee on the Delivery of Legal Services Annual Report                                2 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

The materials contained herein represent the opinions of the authors and editors and 

should not be construed to be those of either the American Bar Association or the 

Standing Committee on the Delivery of Legal Services unless adopted pursuant to the 

bylaws of the Association.  Nothing contained herein is to be considered as the rendering 

of legal advice for specific cases, and readers are responsible for obtaining such advice 

from their own legal counsel.  These materials and any forms and agreements herein are 

intended for educational and informational purposes only. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
American Bar Association 

321 N. Clark Street 

Chicago, IL 60654 

http://www.americanbar.org 

 

 

 

Copyright ©2012 American Bar Association 

http://www.americanbar.org/


ABA Standing Committee on the Delivery of Legal Services Annual Report                                3 

  

 

Table of Contents 

 

Message From The Chair .................................................................................................... 4 

OUTREACH ....................................................................................................................... 5 

    Articles ............................................................................................................................ 5 

    Reports ............................................................................................................................ 8 

    Books .............................................................................................................................. 9 

    Court Rules/Orders/Guidelines ....................................................................................... 9 

    Ethics Opinions ............................................................................................................. 10 

    Events ............................................................................................................................ 11 

    Initiatives/Programs ...................................................................................................... 12 

POLICY ............................................................................................................................ 12 

    Recommendations to the House of Delegates .............................................................. 12 

MODELS .......................................................................................................................... 14 

    Louis M. Brown Award for Legal Access .................................................................... 14 

RESEARCH ................................................................................................................ …..15 

MEMBERSHIP................................................................................................................. 16 

 

 



ABA Standing Committee on the Delivery of Legal Services Annual Report                                4 

Message from the Chair 

 

 

The mission of the ABA Standing Committee on the Delivery of Legal Services is to 

expand access to those of moderate incomes – those who have too many assets to qualify 

for legal aid or pro bono services, yet lack the resources to pay for full traditional legal 

services.  

 

The Committee provides resource to the organized bar, non-profit organizations, the 

judiciary, practitioners and law schools to advance this mission. This Year in Review is 

among those resources. It is designed to help stakeholders broaden their understandings 

of the issues, identify others who are working in parallel paths and facilitate the 

conversations about increased avenues of access to legal services for those just beyond 

the poor. 

 

The Report annotates articles from the legal press, bar publications and reports. It 

provides information about court rules, orders, guidelines and ethics opinions that were 

adopted in 2011. The Report also details information about policies supported by the 

Standing Committee, models promoted through the Louis M. Brown Award for Legal 

Access and research into public views on finding legal services. While the work of the 

Committee is presented, the Report highlights the work of many entities at all levels that 

share a dedication to improving access to justice through a wider conversation, policy 

decisions and programmatic advances. For further reference, the resources provided by 

the Committee are at www.americanbar.org/delivery.  

 

The Committee anticipates and hopes the material in this Report will encourage and 

better enable those from every corner of justice system to further justice for all.  

 

 

 

H. Ritchey Hollenbaugh 

Chair 

 

 

http://www.americanbar.org/delivery


ABA Standing Committee on the Delivery of Legal Services Annual Report                                5 

I. OUTREACH 

 

Through the Delivery Committee website, which is routinely updated with articles, 

reports, ethics opinions, events and more, the Delivery Committee encourages the ABA, 

other bar association and legal groups to actively respond to the unmet legal needs for 

those of moderate income. 

 

Articles  

 

January 2011 

 

 ABA Journal: Sustaining Justice: 10 Experts Tell How Courts Can Do 

More with Less  

The ABA Journal asked experts in the field to offer ideas about how the courts 

can deliver justice effectively during a time of fiscal austerity. Ideas presented 

include simplifying the civil process, a better use of technology, and allowing 

attorneys to assist self-represented litigants. 

 

 Wisconsin Inside Track: Legal Ghostwriting: What Lawyers Should 

Know About Drafting Documents Without Disclosure 

Given the absence of state authority on ghostwriting, State Bar Ethics Counsel 

provides guidance for Wisconsin lawyers. Authority from other jurisdictions 

is drawn upon in suggesting such ethical guidelines.  

 

March 2011 

 

 Wisconsin Inside Track: Demand for Limited Scope Representation is on 

the Rise; Supreme Court Studies Issue, Asks for Input 

Article discusses the efforts of the Wisconsin Supreme Court Planning and 

Policy Advisory Committee (PPAC) to implement limited scope 

representation. Such representation is framed as being a method for closing 

the justice gap as more people are unable to pay for legal services in difficult 

economic times.  

 

June 2011 

 

 The Advocate – NCBA: CYA Corner: Unbundled Service Does Not Mean 

Unnecessary Risks 

Article discusses unbundled services. Member login is required to access. 

 

July 2011 

 

 Oregon State Bar Bulletin: Unbundling Legal Services: Limiting the 

Scope of Representation 

Article discusses some ethical issues surrounding unbundling, including the 

scope of, standards for, and consent for representation. 

http://www.abajournal.com/magazine/article/sustaining_justice/
http://www.abajournal.com/magazine/article/sustaining_justice/
http://www.wisbar.org/AM/Template.cfm?Section=InsideTrack&Template=/CustomSource/InsideTrack/contentDisplay.cfm&ContentID=99333
http://www.wisbar.org/AM/Template.cfm?Section=InsideTrack&Template=/CustomSource/InsideTrack/contentDisplay.cfm&ContentID=99333
http://www.wisbar.org/AM/Template.cfm?Section=InsideTrack&Template=/CustomSource/InsideTrack/contentDisplay.cfm&ContentID=100983
http://www.wisbar.org/AM/Template.cfm?Section=InsideTrack&Template=/CustomSource/InsideTrack/contentDisplay.cfm&ContentID=100983
http://younglawyers.ncbar.org/404-1.htm?aspxerrorpath=/newsletters/theadvocatejune2011.aspx
http://younglawyers.ncbar.org/404-1.htm?aspxerrorpath=/newsletters/theadvocatejune2011.aspx
http://www.osbar.org/publications/bulletin/11jul/barcounsel.html
http://www.osbar.org/publications/bulletin/11jul/barcounsel.html


ABA Standing Committee on the Delivery of Legal Services Annual Report                                6 

 

August 2011 

 

 Las Vegas Sun: Courts’ Self-Help Center has Aided 55,000 People 
Article reports on the high-volume usage of the Court’s self-help center, 

which opened in December 2009. Such self help centers provide forms and 

assistance that make the process more efficient and ensures greater access to 

justice for people who cannot afford an attorney. 

 

 Huffington Post: Liberty and Justice for Some: State Budget Cuts 

Imperil Americans’ Access to Courts 
Article reports on lag times in the court process, which are becoming 

increasingly common due to budget constraints. In order to deal with budget 

cuts, courts all over the country are having to freeze or reduce salaries, lay off 

staff, reduce operating hours, increase fines and fees, and leave positions for 

judges and support staff unfilled. 

 

 Wisconsin Inside Track: Lawyer à la carte: Expanded use of limited-

scope representation on the horizon 

Article discusses a recent report released by the Wisconsin Supreme Court’s 

Planning and Policy Advisory Committee, which identifies appropriate 

programming and initiatives for expanding limited scope representation in 

Wisconsin. 

 

 Washington State Bar News: Professionalism and the Pro Se Problem 

Article discusses the ways in which the increase of pro se litigants challenges 

the efficiency of the court process. A number of justice initiatives that address 

these issues are discussed.   

 

 Law Practice Today: Expanding Your Practice with an Online Office 

Article by Stephanie Kimbro considers what lawyers can do to integrate web-

based technology to deliver legal services to the public.  Prevalent structures 

of online delivery, types of legal services that best utilize this approach, and 

potential regulatory and ethical issues are discussed.  

 

September 2011 

 

 NYSBA Journal: The Law Office of the Near Future: Practical and 

Ethical Considerations for Virtual Practice 

Stephanie Kimbro discusses a number of issues that arise in virtual legal 

practices. Issues discussed relate to the following: confidentiality, avoiding 

the unauthorized practice of law in other jurisdictions, physical office address 

requirements, conflict of interest checks, establishing the attorney-client 

relationship, defining the scope of representation, determining the competency 

of a client, authenticating a client’s identity, supervising assistant lawyers and 

paralegals, and online client development and marketing.  

http://www.lasvegassun.com/news/2011/aug/03/courts-self-help-center-has-aided-55000/
http://www.lasvegassun.com/news/2011/aug/03/courts-self-help-center-has-aided-55000/
http://www.huffingtonpost.com/2011/08/02/state-budget-cuts-access-courts_n_898190.html?page=1
http://www.huffingtonpost.com/2011/08/02/state-budget-cuts-access-courts_n_898190.html?page=1
http://www.wisbar.org/AM/Template.cfm?Section=InsideTrack&Template=/CustomSource/InsideTrack/contentDisplay.cfm&ContentID=104802
http://www.wisbar.org/AM/Template.cfm?Section=InsideTrack&Template=/CustomSource/InsideTrack/contentDisplay.cfm&ContentID=104802
http://www.wsba.org/~/media/Files/News_Events/Publications/Bar%20News/2011%20Full%20Issues/201108AugustBarNews.ashx
http://www.americanbar.org/newsletter/publications/law_practice_today_home/law_practice_today_archive/august11/expanding_your_practice_with_an_online_office.html
http://www.americanbar.org/newsletter/publications/law_practice_today_home/law_practice_today_archive/august11/expanding_your_practice_with_an_online_office.html
http://www.nysba.org/AM/Template.cfm?Section=Home&ContentID=54568&Template=/CM/ContentDisplay.cfm
http://www.nysba.org/AM/Template.cfm?Section=Home&ContentID=54568&Template=/CM/ContentDisplay.cfm


ABA Standing Committee on the Delivery of Legal Services Annual Report                                7 

 

 The Colorado Lawyer: Ethical Considerations When Providing 

Unbundled Legal Services 

Article discusses the need for limited scope representation and the ethical 

considerations for attorneys in providing these services. The Colorado Rules 

of Professional Conduct are explained and discussed.  

 

 The Montana Lawyer: New Limited-Scope Rules in Effect Oct. 1 

New unbundling rules in Montana are described and discussed. Ethical 

concerns regarding the creating of a two-tiered justice system, the 

unauthorized practice of law, and the potential for increased risk to lawyers 

are addressed. 

 

 The Arkansas Lawyer: Many Lawyers, Yet the Unmet Need for Legal 

Services 

Article discusses efforts to better match the supply of lawyers with the 

demand of people in need of legal services.  

 

October 2011 

 

 The Baltimore Sun: Self-Help Center Expands Free Legal Services 

Statewide 
Article discusses how a district court self-help center uses online and 

telephone assistance to expand services throughout the state of Maryland, 

increasing the population’s access to justice.   

 

 Connecticut Law Tribune: Two Ways To Cope With Judicial Budget 

Reductions 
Article reports on the recent convening of the American Bar Association Task 

Force on the Preservation of the Justice System. 

 

 Illinois Bar Journal: Does Your Law Firm Need a Virtual Reality? 

Article discusses Internet-based software innovations and their potential to 

help practitioners cut costs while expanding their client base. Logistics 

involved in making the transition from brick-and-mortar processes to online 

processes are explained.   

 

 GP Solo eReport: The Ethics of Unbundling 

Stephanie Kimbro discusses the precautions law firms must take to ethically 

provide these services. The article raises a number of concerns to address in 

determining whether unbundling is appropriate and provides a step-by-step 

explanation of how to incorporate unbundling into one’s legal practice. 

 

 

 

 

http://www.cobar.org/tcl/tcl_articles.cfm?articleid=7208
http://www.cobar.org/tcl/tcl_articles.cfm?articleid=7208
http://www.montanabar.org/associations/7121/September%202011%20mt%20lawyer.pdf
http://issuu.com/arkansas_bar_association/docs/fall_2011_lawyer?mode=embed
http://issuu.com/arkansas_bar_association/docs/fall_2011_lawyer?mode=embed
http://www.baltimoresun.com/news/maryland/anne-arundel/bs-md-ar-court-chat-20111017,0,3075650.story
http://www.baltimoresun.com/news/maryland/anne-arundel/bs-md-ar-court-chat-20111017,0,3075650.story
http://www.ctlawtribune.com/getarticle.aspx?id=40226
http://www.ctlawtribune.com/getarticle.aspx?id=40226
http://www.isba.org/ibj/2011/10/doesyourlawfirmneedavirtualreality
http://www.americanbar.org/publications/gpsolo_ereport/2011/october_2011/ethics_unbundling.html


ABA Standing Committee on the Delivery of Legal Services Annual Report                                8 

November 2011 

 

 The Colorado Lawyer: Limited Scope Representation Under the 

Proposed Amendment to C.R.C.P. 121 §1-1 

Article addresses practical considerations for attorneys providing limited 

scope representation related to the Colorado Supreme Court’s proposed 

amendment. Considerations include service of process, communication with 

attorney or pro se party, and retainer agreements. 

 

December 2011 

 

 Palm Beach Post: Yes, they’re real lawyers: Booth at Boynton mall 

peddles foreclosure advice 
Article reports on a law booth that opened the prior month in Boynton Beach 

Mall. Such a nontraditional approach provides legal assistance outside of 

normal business hours, increasing access to the law for many people.  

 

 Ingham County Legal News: Unbundling Your Legal Services is 

Increasingly Popular 
Article discusses Stephanie Kimbro’s book and the growing popularity of 

unbundling legal services.   

 

Reports  
 

April 2011 

 

 Kansas Courts: Report on Limited Representation Pilot Projects 

The Report of Limited Representation Pilot Projects details the work of the 

Self-Represented Study Committee and its efforts to advance unbundling and 

self-help in Kansas. 

 

May 2011 

 

 Joint Task Force on Limited Scope Legal Representation: Limited Scope 

Legal Representation 

A report issued by the Illinois Joint Task Force on Limited Scope 

Representation promotes unbundling and recommends a number of rule 

changes.  

 

August 2011 

 

 Wisconsin Supreme Court Planning and Policy Advisory Committee 

(PPAC): Subcommittee on Limited Scope Representation Feasibility 

Study and Recommendations 

A report from the PPAC details the findings of a study conducted by the 

Subcommittee in Limited Scope Representation. The report includes findings 

http://www.cobar.org/tcl/tcl_articles.cfm?articleid=7300
http://www.cobar.org/tcl/tcl_articles.cfm?articleid=7300
http://www.palmbeachpost.com/money/foreclosures/yes-theyre-real-lawyers-booth-at-boynton-mall-2008689.html
http://www.palmbeachpost.com/money/foreclosures/yes-theyre-real-lawyers-booth-at-boynton-mall-2008689.html
http://www.legalnews.com/ingham/1137706
http://www.legalnews.com/ingham/1137706
http://www.americanbar.org/content/dam/aba/uncategorized/20110509_ls_del_kansas_unbundling_pilot_projects.authcheckdam.pdf
http://www.isba.org/sites/default/files/committees/limitedscopelegalrepresentation/limitedscopelegalrepfinalreport.pdf
http://www.isba.org/sites/default/files/committees/limitedscopelegalrepresentation/limitedscopelegalrepfinalreport.pdf
http://www.wicourts.gov/courts/committees/docs/ppaclimitedscopereport.pdf
http://www.wicourts.gov/courts/committees/docs/ppaclimitedscopereport.pdf
http://www.wicourts.gov/courts/committees/docs/ppaclimitedscopereport.pdf


ABA Standing Committee on the Delivery of Legal Services Annual Report                                9 

on the effectiveness of a number of court initiatives and detailed 

recommendations for implementing limited scope representation 

programming.  

 

October 2011 

 

 Access Across America: First Report of the Civil Justice Infrastructure 

Mapping Project 

A report by Access Across America provides a state-by-state portrait of 

services available to assist the U.S. public in accessing civil justice. The report 

details who is eligible for civil legal assistance, how it is produced and 

delivered, how eligible people connect with services, how such assistance is 

funded, and how these services are coordinated and regulated. 

 

Books  

 

 Stephanie Kimbro: Serving the DIY Client: A Guide to Unbundling 

Legal Services for the Private Practitioner 

Author, Stephanie Kimbro provides guidance on how attorneys may offer 

unbundled legal services.  

Court Rules/Orders/Guidelines 

January 2011 

 Supreme Court of Mississippi: Rule of Professional Conduct 1.2(c) 

Changes were made to the Mississippi Rules of Professional Conduct to 

facilitate limited scope representation by attorneys as one means of addressing 

the unmet legal needs of low to moderate income people. 

March 2011 

 Supreme Court of Montana: Rules of Civil Procedure 4.2, 4.3, and 11 

Changes were made to the Montana Rules of Civil Procedure to facilitate 

limited scope representation by attorneys as one means of addressing the 

unmet legal needs of low to moderate income people.  

 

 Supreme Court of Montana: Rules of Professional Conduct 1.2, 4.2, and 

4.3 

Changes were made to the Montana Rules of Professional Conduct to 

facilitate limited scope representation by attorneys as one means of addressing 

the unmet legal needs of low to moderate income people.  

 

 

http://www.americanbarfoundation.org/uploads/cms/documents/access_across_america_first_report_of_the_civil_justice_infrastructure_mapping_project.pdf
http://www.americanbarfoundation.org/uploads/cms/documents/access_across_america_first_report_of_the_civil_justice_infrastructure_mapping_project.pdf
http://virtuallawpractice.org/wp-content/uploads/2012/03/Serving-the-DIY-Client-Ebook-4.7.12.pdf
http://virtuallawpractice.org/wp-content/uploads/2012/03/Serving-the-DIY-Client-Ebook-4.7.12.pdf
http://courts.ms.gov/Images/Opinions/167564.pdf
http://supremecourtdocket.mt.gov/view/AF%2007-0157%20Rule%20Change%20--%20Order?id=%7b74651E53-E69E-4101-B614-4D48E1FF894D%7d
http://supremecourtdocket.mt.gov/view/AF%2009-0688%20Rule%20Change%20--%20Order?id=%7bDF5F0047-A741-4BE0-A672-04051EF478E1%7d
http://supremecourtdocket.mt.gov/view/AF%2009-0688%20Rule%20Change%20--%20Order?id=%7bDF5F0047-A741-4BE0-A672-04051EF478E1%7d


ABA Standing Committee on the Delivery of Legal Services Annual Report                                10 

May 2011 

 Delaware’s Judicial Guidelines for Civil Hearings Involving Self-

Represented Litigants 

The Delaware Supreme Court adopted new guidelines to facilitate procedural 

fairness in the courtroom, particularly when one party is self-represented and 

one has an attorney.   

September 2011 

 Indiana Supreme Court: Rule of Trial Procedure 3.1 

The Indiana Supreme Court amended its Rules of Trial Procedure to facilitate 

temporary and limited scope representation by attorneys. 

October 2011 

 Colorado Supreme Court: Rule of Civil Procedure 121 

The Colorado Supreme Court amended its Rules of Civil Procedure to 

facilitate limited scope representation by attorneys.  

November 2011 

 United States Court of Appeals for the Second Circuit: In re Fengling Liu 

The U.S. Court of Appeals for the Second Circuit accepted limited scope 

representation by attorneys. Specifically, the Court found that the attorney’s 

ghostwriting did not constitute sanctionable misconduct.  

 

Ethics Opinions  

 

February 2011 

 

 Formal Opinion No. 2011-183: Scope of Representation; Limiting the 

Scope 

Formal Opinion 2011-183 finds that limited scope representation is expressly 

allowed by Oregon RPC 1.2(b) and clarifies that an attorney may limit 

representation to certain actions or issues. 

 

June 2011 

 

 Informal Ethics Opinion EI-11-01: Legal Information Seminars 

Informal Opinion EI-11-01 discusses limited scope representation in the 

context of legal information seminars and clarifies the nature of the lawyer-

client relationship in this context. 

 

 

 

http://www.courts.state.de.us/Supreme/AdmDir/ad178guidelines.pdf
http://www.courts.state.de.us/Supreme/AdmDir/ad178guidelines.pdf
http://www.in.gov/judiciary/files/rule-amends-2011-order-amend-2011-trial.pdf
http://www.courts.state.co.us/userfiles/file/Court_Probation/Supreme_Court/Rule_Changes/2011/2011_13_redlined.pdf
http://www.ca2.uscourts.gov/decisions/isysquery/41710a04-29b7-431d-8e01-327ebeeee649/4/doc/09-90006_complete_opn.pdf
http://www.osbar.org/ethics/toc.html
http://www.osbar.org/ethics/toc.html
http://www.wisbar.org/AM/Template.cfm?Section=Wisconsin_Lawyer&template=/CM/ContentDisplay.cfm&contentid=102935


ABA Standing Committee on the Delivery of Legal Services Annual Report                                11 

Events  

 

February 2011 

 

 National Conference of Bar Presidents Midyear Meeting 

The 2011 Midyear Conference of Bar Presidents was held on February 10-12 

in Atlanta, Georgia. A workshop on using the Internet to provide legal 

services was offered titled “Virtual Lawyering: The Bar’s Role in Designing a 

New Business Model. Click here for handouts provided during the workshop.  

 

April 2011 

 

 ABA TECHSHOW  

On April 11-13, the ABA TECHSHOW presented information on technology 

and the legal field. Findings of a public opinion poll on how the public finds 

personal legal services were presented by the Standing Committee on the 

Delivery of Legal Services. 

 

May 2011 

 

 ABA/ NLADA Equal Justice Conference  

The American Bar Association Standing Committee on Pro Bono and Public 

Service and the National Legal Aid and Defender Association held the annual 

Equal Justice Conference May 19-21 in Las Vegas, Nevada.  

 

 National Meeting of the Access to Justice Chairs 

The annual meeting for the Access to Justice Chairs was held May 21 in Las 

Vegas, Nevada. A number of presenters discussed various topics related to 

expanding access to justice.    

 

 ABA National Conference on Professional Responsibility  

The ABA held its 37
th

 annual National Conference on Professional 

Responsibility June 2-4 in Memphis, Tennessee. Of note, a breakout session 

on virtual law practice, titled “The Future is Here: Ethical and Regulatory 

Implications of Virtual Law Practice” was held. Panelists included Will 

Hornsby, Randall DiFuntorum, Richard S. Granat, and Stephanie L. Kimbro.  

 

August 2011 

 

 NCBP/NABE/NCBF Annual Meeting  

The 2011 Annual Meeting of the National Conference of Bar Presidents, the 

National Association of Bar Executives, and the National Conference of Bar 

Foundations was held August 5-6 in Toronto, Ontario. The ABA presented 

information at a roundtable discussion on how the public finds legal services. 

The program began with an overview of the results of public opinion research 

undertaken by the ABA Standing Committee on the Delivery of Legal 

http://www.ncbp.org/displaycommon.cfm?an=1&subarticlenbr=33
http://www.ncbp.org/displaycommon.cfm?an=1&subarticlenbr=33
http://www.ncbp.org/associations/11895/files/Virtual%20Lawyering.pdf
http://www2.americanbar.org/calendar/TECHSHOW/Pages/PastExhibitors.aspx
http://www.nlada.org/Training/Train_Civil/Train_Civil_EqualJustice
http://www.nlada.org/Training/Train_Civil/Train_Civil_EqualJustice
http://www.americanbar.org/content/dam/aba/events/legal_aid_indigent_defendants/20110512_ls_sclaid_agenda_2011.authcheckdam.pdf
http://www2.americanbar.org/calendar/cp0611-aba-national-conference-on-professional-responsibility/Documents/Conference%20on-site%20schedule%20(5-12-11).pdf
http://www2.americanbar.org/calendar/cp0611-aba-national-conference-on-professional-responsibility/Documents/Conference%20on-site%20schedule%20(5-12-11).pdf
http://www.ncbp.org/associations/11895/files/NABE%20NCBP%20NCBF%20AM11%20Program%20-Final.pdf


ABA Standing Committee on the Delivery of Legal Services Annual Report                                12 

Services and conducted by Harris Interactive in the fall of 2010. Click here for 

a report of the results of a public opinion poll.  

 

October 2011 

 

 GPSolo Fall Meeting & National Solo and Small Firm Conference 

The General Practice, Solo & Small Firm Division presented a conference on 

October 21
st
 designed for new and experienced lawyers looking for 

substantive and practical programming. The ABA Standing Committee on the 

Delivery of Legal Services participated. 

 

 Futures Conference: Challenging the Law Practice Management Model 

The 2011 Futures Conference was held October 28-29
th

 at Chicago-Kent 

College of Law in Chicago. Several presenters discussed the use of 

technology in the delivery of legal services. 

  

 Symposium on Limited Scope Representation 

The Connecticut Bar Foundation and the Connecticut Bar Association 

presented a symposium on Limited Scope Representation. The centered 

around the court’s ability to allow automatic withdrawal of a limited 

appearance once the terms of the limited agreement have been fulfilled. 

Additionally, the symposium explored proposed revisions to the Practice 

Book and the Rules of Professional Conduct For more information, click here. 

 

Initiatives/Programs  

 

January 2011 

 

 Washington State Bar Association: Moderate Means Program 

The Moderate Means Program, a partnership between the Washington State 

Bar Association and three Washington law schools, is a statewide reduced-fee 

lawyer referral services designed to increase access to justice for people of 

moderate means.  

 

II. POLICY 

Recommendations to the House of Delegates 

After reviewing recommendations before the House of Delegates, the Delivery 

Committee co-sponsored the following items, each of which are consistent with the 

Committee’s mission to expand access to justice for those of moderate income: 

 

 

http://www.ncbp.org/displaycommon.cfm?an=1&subarticlenbr=37
http://www2.americanbar.org/calendar/gp1011-gpsolo-2011-fall-meeting/pages/default.aspx
http://collegeoflpm.org/meetings/meeting-materials/2011-meeting-materials/
https://www.ctbar.org/News/NewsDetail.aspx?NewsId=130
http://www.ctbar.org/userfiles/LSRInvitation.pdf
http://www.wsba.org/Legal-Community/Volunteer-Opportunities/Public-Service-Opportunities/Moderate-Means-Program


ABA Standing Committee on the Delivery of Legal Services Annual Report                                13 

2011 Midyear Meeting 

 Recommendation 109A recommends the Uniform Partition of Heirs Property Act, 

promulgated by the National Conference of Commissioners on Uniform State 

Laws in 2010, as an appropriate Act for those states desiring to adopt the specific 

substantive law suggested therein. Action taken: approved. 

 

 Recommendation 109F recommends the Uniform Collaborative Law Rules/Act, 

promulgated by the National Conference of Commissioners on Uniform State 

Laws in 2010, as appropriate legislation for those states desiring to adopt he 

specific substantive law suggested therein. Action taken: withdrawn. 

2011 Annual Meeting 

 Resolution 103C urges the Department of Homeland Security to revise its policies 

so that detained parents, legal guardians, and primary caregivers of children have 

meaningful participation with their attorneys at judicial proceedings involving 

their children; and that those involved in family and juvenile courts be educated 

regarding the connection between state child welfare laws and immigration laws. 

Action taken: approved. 

 

 Resolution 104A supports application of the Immigration and Nationality Act to 

allow persons outside the United States to pursue motions to reopen or motions to 

reconsider removal (deportation) proceedings on the same basis and subject to the 

same restrictions that apply to persons who file such petitions from within the 

United States. Action taken: approved. 

 

 Resolution 110B supports rules or legislation for those states desiring to adopt 

specific substantive law suggested therein. Action taken: not approved. 

 

 Resolution 120 urges Congress to amend the Uniformed Services Employment 

and Reemployment Rights Act of 1994 (“USERRA” or “the Act”), 38 U.S.C. §§ 

4301-4335, by adding provisions to require employers to provide certain 

reasonable accommodations for returning veterans with combat injuries that may 

not manifest themselves until after a return to work. Action taken: approved. 

 

 Resolution 122 adopts the ABA Standards for Language Access in Courts, dated 

August 2011, and urges courts and other tribunals to give high priority to the 

prompt implementation of these Standards.  Action taken: postponed indefinitely. 

 

 Resolution 123 adopts the Model Time Standards for State Courts, dated August 

2011, and urges state judicial systems to adopt and implement the Standards. 

Action taken: approved as revised and amended. 

 

 

http://www.americanbar.org/content/dam/aba/migrated/2011_build/house_of_delegates/daily_journal_2011v2.doc
http://www.americanbar.org/content/dam/aba/migrated/2011_build/house_of_delegates/daily_journal_2011v2.doc
http://www.americanbar.org/content/dam/aba/administrative/house_of_delegates/resolutions/2011_hod_annual_meeting_daily_journal_FINAL.authcheckdam.pdf
http://www.americanbar.org/content/dam/aba/administrative/house_of_delegates/resolutions/2011_hod_annual_meeting_daily_journal_FINAL.authcheckdam.pdf
http://www.americanbar.org/content/dam/aba/administrative/house_of_delegates/resolutions/2011_hod_annual_meeting_daily_journal_FINAL.authcheckdam.pdf
http://www.americanbar.org/content/dam/aba/administrative/house_of_delegates/resolutions/2011_hod_annual_meeting_daily_journal_FINAL.authcheckdam.pdf
http://www.americanbar.org/content/dam/aba/administrative/house_of_delegates/resolutions/2011_hod_annual_meeting_daily_journal_FINAL.authcheckdam.pdf
http://www.americanbar.org/content/dam/aba/administrative/house_of_delegates/resolutions/2011_hod_annual_meeting_daily_journal_FINAL.authcheckdam.pdf


ABA Standing Committee on the Delivery of Legal Services Annual Report                                14 

III. MODELS  

Louis M. Brown Award for Legal Access 

 

The Louis M. Brown Award for Legal Access honors programs and projects dedicated to 

matching the unmet legal needs of the middle class and those of moderate incomes with 

lawyers who provide affordable legal information, services and representation.   

 

The Award is presented annually to those who have made creative contributions to the 

delivery of legal services in ways that are exemplary and replicable.  In 2011, the 

Delivery Committee recognized three programs.  

 

2011 Brown Award Recipient: 

 

Pinellas County Clerk of the Circuit Court Legal Self Help Center 

The Self Help Center sets attorney appointments for a nominal fee of $1 per 

minute with a minimum of $15 and a maximum of $60. Fees paid by the litigants 

fund the Self Help Center attorneys and no person is turned away based upon 

income. In addition to setting attorney appointments, the Self Help Center also 

provides specialized software that assists in filling out forms, maintains and sells 

packets for civil court actions, provides notary services and processes copy 

requests.  

 

2011 Brown Award Meritorious Recognition Recipients: 

  

 Arizona Foundation for Legal Services & Education and the State Bar of

 Arizona Modest Means Project 

The partnership between Arizona’s Foundation for Legal Services & Education 

and the State Bar of Arizona Modest Means Project (MMP) assist individuals 

within the justice gap through LegalLEARN, a statewide legal services contact 

center. The contact center assists individuals making 250% or less of the Federal 

Poverty Guidelines with Bankruptcy, Consumer Law, Family Law, Housing, 

Guardianships and Wills & Trusts issues. The project provides 1 hour of brief 

assistance for $75. For continued assistance, the $75/hour fee continues. Callers 

receive an ID number and a list of attorneys working in the designated practice 

area.   

 

Mauk & O’Connor, LLP 

Founded in 2005, Mauk & O’Connor, LLP is a two-attorney law firm devoted 

exclusively to representation of families involved in special education disputes 

with local schools in northern Illinois. The firm is committed to assuring 

vigorous, comprehensive advocacy for parents and their disabled child, and seeks 

to maximize access to representation in meritorious cases by offering flexible fee 

and retainer policies. The business plan for the firm relies on recovery of attorney 

fees from the local school district as part of a settlement or after prevailing in a 

due process hearing before a state board of education hearing officer. The firm 

http://www.pinellasclerk.org/aspInclude2/ASPInclude.asp?pageName=selfhelp.htm
http://www.azflse.org/modestmeans/
http://www.azflse.org/modestmeans/
http://maukoconnor.com/


ABA Standing Committee on the Delivery of Legal Services Annual Report                                15 

has been successful over the past six years in two ways: first, in representing 

scores of low and moderate income families each year; and second, in sustaining 

the firm through recovery of attorney fees from school districts. More than 90% 

of firm revenue is received from school districts rather than the clients. Several 

legal organizations in the Chicago area have adopted this model to create or 

expand advocacy resources devoted to special education problems.  

 

 

IV. RESEARCH 

 

 

Public Opinion Poll Report 

 

In 2010, the Delivery Committee commissioned Harris Interactive to conduct a public 

opinion poll to determine how consumers find legal services, as well as their 

awareness of unbundled legal services. In 2011, the Delivery Committee analyzed 

and summarized the findings into a report titled “Perspectives on Finding Personal 

Legal Services.” Findings were based on data collected in 2010 from 1,008 

respondents from around the country by landline telephone calls. Demographics were 

weighted and the survey results were statistically significant.  

 

In assessing how people find lawyers for personal legal matter, the survey set out to 

assess two factors: the percentage of people who would rely on a trusted source and 

whether there was a movement away from print directories toward online 

information. The survey indicated that 80 percent of respondents would turn to a 

trusted source, with 20% turning to impersonal sources. These percentages were 

comparable to those from similar surveys conducted in 1990. With regard to the latter 

factor, few people indicated they would turn to either print directories or online 

searches as their primary way of finding a lawyer. Online models to connect people 

with lawyers were not greatly popular overall, with less than half reporting that they 

were likely to use any model. However, models with consumer ratings, those that 

provide online answers to questions and traditional websites were more highly rated 

than Web 2.0 models such as blogs, social networking sites and Twitter. 

 

A large percentage of people reported they were unfamiliar with unbundled legal 

services, sometimes known as limited scope representation. Seventy percent were not 

at all familiar with the concept and only 11 percent were somewhat or very familiar 

with it. Nevertheless, people were interested in unbundling as an alternative, with 

two-thirds reporting that they were interested in discussing unbundling with their 

lawyer and would take into account a lawyer’s willingness to unbundle services when 

deciding who to use for a personal legal matter.  

 

Finally, the survey looked at resources people would use if they proceeded without a 

lawyer. The top tier included judges, self-help centers and free online sources, while 

people were very unlikely to turn to paid online sources.  

 

http://www.harrisinteractive.com/
http://www.americanbar.org/content/dam/aba/administrative/delivery_legal_services/20110228_aba_harris_survey_report.authcheckdam.pdf
http://www.americanbar.org/content/dam/aba/administrative/delivery_legal_services/20110228_aba_harris_survey_report.authcheckdam.pdf


ABA Standing Committee on the Delivery of Legal Services Annual Report                                16 

 

 

 

STANDING COMMITTEE ON THE DELIVERY OF LEGAL SERVICES 

MEMBERSHIP, 2011 

 

 

Chair     H. Ritchey Hollenbaugh, Columbus, OH  

   

Members    Marjory G. Basile, Detroit, MI 

     Luz Elena Herrera, San Diego, CA 

     Bonnie Rose Hough, San Francisco, CA 

     Elio F. Martinez, Jr., Coral Gables, FL 

     Carl Arthur Pierce, Knoxville, TN 

     Frederick Rooney, Flushing, NY 

     Pamela D. Stevenson, Scott AFB, IL 

     Griselda Vega, Brooklyn, NY 

Special Advisor   Richard Cassidy, Burlington, VT 

 

 

Advisory Council   Jonathan Asher, Denver, CO 

     David F. Bienvenu, New Orleans, LA 

     Brenda Bratton Blom, Baltimore, MD 

     Adrienne M. Byers, Los Angeles, CA 

     Jeanne Charn, Cambridge, MA 

     Michelle Cofield, Cary, NC 

     Bob Cohen, Santa Ana, CA 

     Marvin S. C. Dang, Honolulu, HI 

     Joan Fairbanks, Seattle, WA 

     Fern Fisher, New York, NY 

     Victor Geminiani, Kailua, HI 

     Don Horowitz, Seattle, WA 

     Zona F. Hostetler, Washington, DC 

     Jeff Hughes, Santa Monica, CA 

     Marc Lauritsen, Harvard, MA 

     Patricia Lee, San Francisco, CA 

     Hon. Lora Livingston, Austin, TX 

     Keith B. McLennan, Collegeville, PA 

     Prof. Jim Meeker, Irvine, CA 

     Michael Millemann, Baltimore, MD 

     Wayne Moore, Washington, DC 

     Forrest S. Mosten, Los Angeles, CA 

     Kevin O’Keefe, Bainbridge Island, WA 

     Lonnie A. Powers, Boston, MA 

     M. Catherine Richardson, Syracuse, NY 

     Philip Robinson, Baltimore, MD 



ABA Standing Committee on the Delivery of Legal Services Annual Report                                17 

     Mary Ryan, Boston, MA 

     Elizabeth J. Scheffee, Portland, ME 

     Debbie Segal, Atlanta, GA 

     Gerry Singsen, Watertown, MA 

     Cubbedge Snow, Macon, GA 

     Ronald Staudt, Chicago, IL 

     M. Sue Talia, Danville, CA 

     Allen J. Webster, Jr. Compton, CA 

     Richard Zorza, Washington, DC 

 

Liaisions From: 

Board of Governors   Joseph J. Roszkowski, Woonsocket, RI 

American Prepaid Legal  

  Services Institute   David A. Baker, Atlanta, GA 

Law Student Division   Terra Brooke Geiger, St. Petersburg, FL 

Family Law Section   Jean Crowe, Nashville, TN 

Judicial Division   Hon. Susan N. Burke, Minneapolis, MN 

Law Practice Management 

  Section    Richard S. Granat, Palm Beach Gardens, FL 

 

 

Staff     Will Hornsby, Staff Counsel 

     Tracy Loynachan, Research and Policy Analyst 

     through 2011 

     April Faith-Slaker, Research and Policy Analyst 

     Janice Jones, Program and Events Manager 

      

  



Nevada Law Foundation Board Contact List  
 

June 21, 2012 
 

Name Originally 

Appointed 

Reappointed Term Exp. Contact Information 

 

Dara Goldsmith, 

Chairperson 

 

SC July 2010 

 

SC June 2012 

 

June 2013 

Goldsmith & Guymon 

2055 Village Center Cr. 

Las Vegas, NV  89134 

Phone: 702-873-9500 

Email: dgoldsmith@goldguylaw.com 

 

D. Lee Roberts,  

Vice-Chairperson 

 

SC July 2010 

 

SC June 2012 

 

June 2014 

Weinberg Wheeler Hudgins Gunn & Dial 

6385 Rainbow Blvd, Ste. 400 

Las Vegas, NV 89118 

Phone: 702-938-3838 

Email:  lroberts@wwhgd.com  

 

Sharon McNair, 

Treasurer 

Layperson 

 

SC July 2010 

 

SC June 2012 

 

June 2014 

McNair CPA 

4015 S. El Capitan Way, Suite 888 

Las Vegas, NV 89147 

Phone: 702-646-0888 

Email: Sharon@mcnaircpas.com  

 

Nicole Lamboley, 

Secretary 

Layperson 

 

SC June 2010 

 

SC June 2012 

 

June 2014 

Secretary of State 

Capitol Building 

101 North Carson St, Suite 3 

Carson City, NV 89701-3714 

Phone:  775-684-5714 

Email:  nlamboley@me.com  

 

Trevor Atkin 

 

SC July 2010 

 

SC June 2012 

 

June 2014 

Atkin Winner & Sherrod 

1117 S. Rancho Dr. 

Las Vegas, NV 89102 

Phone: 702-243-7000 

Email: tatkin@awslawyers.com 

 

Randy Boesch 

Layperson 

 

SC June 2012 

 

NA 

 

June 2014 

City National Bank 

10801 W. Charleston Blvd #100 

Las Vegas, NV 

Phone: 702-952-4445 

Randy.Boesch@cnb.com   

 

Julie Cavanaugh-Bill 

 

SBN July 2010 

 

SC June 2012 

 

June 2013 

Cavanaugh-Bill Law Offices, LLC 

401 Railroad St.  Ste 307 

Elko, NV  89801 

Phone: 775-753-4357 

Email: Julie@cblawoffices.org 

 

David Dahan 

Layperson 

 

SC July 2010 

 

SC June 2012 

 

June 2014 

Orgill/Singer & Associates Inc 

8360 W. Sahara Ave. Suite 110 

Las Vegas, Nevada 89117 

Phone: 702-796-9100 

Email: ddahan@orgillsinger.com 

 

Laura Fitzsimmons 

 

SC July 2010 

 

SC June 2012 

 

June 2013 

411 N. Division St. 

Carson City, NV 89703 

Phone: 775-841-3000 

Email: lwflawyer@aol.com 

mailto:dgoldsmith@goldguylaw.com
mailto:lroberts@wwhgd.com
mailto:Sharon@mcnaircpas.com
mailto:nlamboley@me.com
mailto:tatkin@awslawyers.com
mailto:Randy.Boesch@cnb.com
mailto:Julie@cblawoffices.org
mailto:ddahan@orgillsinger.com
mailto:lwflawyer@aol.com


Nevada Law Foundation Board Contact List  
 

June 21, 2012 
 

Name Originally 

Appointed 

Reappointed Term Exp. Contact Information 

 

Sarah Guindy 

Layperson 

 

SC July 2008 

 

SC June 2012 

 

June 2013 

Bank of Nevada 

3985 S. Durango 

Las Vegas, NV 89147 

Phone: 702-363-5140 

Email: sguindy@bankofnevada.com 

 

Caren Jenkins 

 

SC June 2012 

 

NA 

 

June 2014 

Nevada Commission of Ethics 

412 Tahoe Drive 

Carson City, NV 89703 

carenjenkins@rocketmail.com  

 

Mary Korpi 

Layperson 

SC June 2012 NA June 2014 Newmont Mining Corporation 

3114 Midland Drive 

Elko, NV 89801 

Mary.korpi@newmont.com  

 

Eleissa LaVelle 

 

SBN July 2010 

 

SC June 2012 

 

June 2013 

JAMS 

3800 Howard Hughes Parkway 

Las Vegas, NV  89169 

Phone: 702-457-5267 

Email: elavelle@jamsadr.com 

 

Susanne Pennington 

Layperson 

 

SBN Aug 2011 

 

NA 

 

June 2013 

4260 MeadowGate Trail 

Reno, NV 89519 

Email: susannepennington@gmail.com  

 

Kent Robison 

 

SC June 2012 

 

NA 

 

June 2014 

Robison, Belaustegui, Sharp & Low 

71 Washington Street 

Reno, NV 89503 

krobison@rbsllaw.com  

 

Ryan D. Russell 

 

SC June 2012 

 

NA 

 

June 2014 

1601 Robb Dr. 

Carson City, NV 89703 

Phone: 775-721-7922 

Email:  rrussell@allisonmackenzie.com 

 

Garth Winckler 

 

SBN July 2010 

 

SC June 2012 

 

June 2013 

World Doc Foundation 

7730 W. Sahara Blvd., Ste 105 

Las Vegas, NV 89117 

Phone: 702-809-7672 

Email: gwinckler@worlddoc.com 

 

mailto:sguindy@bankofnevada.com
mailto:carenjenkins@rocketmail.com
mailto:Mary.korpi@newmont.com
mailto:elavelle@jamsadr.com
mailto:susannepennington@gmail.com
mailto:krobison@rbsllaw.com
mailto:gwinckler@worlddoc.com

	ATJC Agenda 
	06.29.2012
	Main Agenda 
	Washoe County Public Defender Emeritus Attorney Pro Bono Application
	IOLTA June
	IOLTA May
	IOLTA April
	Award Form 

	2011 Uniform Stats- draft
	6.1 Stats  2nd Run 2011
	Annual Report Draft 2010
	ex 1  Uniform Stats 2010

	Self Help Center Stats May 2012
	Project Salute e-news
	Veterans materials EJC 2012
	ATJC Master Calendar June 2012
	2012 NLS Events South
	March 9 2012 Draft Minutes
	NY Mandates Pro Bono for new admittees
	ABA 2011 Delivery Year in Review


